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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more

suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the main board
of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will

be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this

report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the issuer. The
directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report

misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
QA EH
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and equity
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements and restated/reclassified
as appropriate, is set out below. The amounts for each year in the

five year financial summary have been adjusted for the effects of

the retrospective changes in the accounting policy as detailed in
note 2.1 to the financial statements.

s/ ur

E

TXEFIAEENBERLAVBRFEZEERE
E BEER(DHEEE T ELERYBR
RUYBRBEEBRTENEFHHE) - LAY
BEERF VBB ESHC ST HRENRE
MEL AR - FERRHBRERME2.1 -

RESULTS E 3
For the year ended 31st March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009
—B——f ZT——% CZE-Z2F ZTEAF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E=5)) (=5) (#&=7)) (=E75))
Revenue WA 854,323 1,035,410 1,702,869 886,569 596,130
Profit/(loss) before tax  BRFLATEF, (E518) (29,380) (217,256) 22,862 3,261 (137,664)
Income tax credit/ FTi5#i R
(expense) (ZH) (4,111) (23,805) (970) 13,450 1,571
Profit/(loss) after tax BRABEF (EE)
and profit/(loss) P EN/NSI Y
attributable to the wmAl (E518)
shareholders of the
Company (33,491) (241,061) 21,892 16,711 (136,093)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

BE - AEKES

As at 31st March

R=A=+—H

2012 2011 2010 2009
—FT——F T ZZT—ZF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET F#T FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&) (g=5) (&=75)) (B&E5)
Total assets BERE 1,170,005 1,611,591 1,769,813 2,321,669 2,072,765
Total liabilites BERE (196,358) (336,280) (255,170) (314,734) (145,688)
Equity attributable to PiN/NEI LY
shareholders of the =
Company 973,647 1,275,311 1,514,643 2,006,935 1,927,077

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2REEIZRERAA



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

GENERAL OVERVIEW

Since the beginning of the fiscal year ended 31st March 2013 (the
“year”), our focus has been on execution to turnaround the Group’s
business from a consolidated net loss of about HK$241 million in
our last fiscal year ended 31st March 2012 (“last year”). With the
dedication and focus of our management team, the Group has
successfully reduced the consolidated net loss by 86.3% to HK$33

million.

During the year, the Group has also carefully evaluated its cash
resources and ultimately freed up cash of about HK$269 million to
distribute to shareholders as a special dividend in October 2012.
The Group also put forward a 10 for 1 capital reorganization plan,
which became effective on 17th September 2012, to enhance the

liquidity of our shares for the benefit of our shareholders.

DIVISION HIGHLIGHTS

For American Tec, its management team continues to build and
maintain a high level of collaboration with our major business partner
Fuji Machine Mfg. Co., Ltd. As a result, they have managed to win
projects and expanded our customer base with Fuji machines.
Strategically, we have signed new distribution agreements with
world-class solution suppliers and established a software team to
launch our Digital Manufacturing System and delivered to customers
our value-added software solution to meet their manufacturing and
enterprise system needs for increased quality and productivity.
During the year, it achieved a net profit of approximately HK$22
million on revenue of approximately HK$734 million for the year,
comparable with the net profit of approximately HK$21 million on

revenue of approximately HK$892 million in last year.

For the Burger King operation, three restaurants were closed as part
of our profitability enhancement plan. We benefited from our strong
alliance with the franchisor BK AsiaPac, Pte. Ltd. to lower food cost.
The management team has started implementing various measures
to enhance customer experience, improve operational efficiency
and drive sales growth. As a result, the division recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$120 million with a net profit of approximately
HK$5 million, versus a net loss of approximately HK$141 million on

revenue of approximately HK$143 million in last year.

BE

BBE_E—=F=A=+—BIMBFE(LRF
EDR%  AEEBHEEZEABRE  BRSAE
¥R HEASEE T —F=A=+—HI¥
BEE(LFEDFABRFRN2.41BETEE
RE - EEREBKELHHIT  AEERDSHES
B8 FER 4 86.3% £ 3,300 BT
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B RIERH R REEEELT T 205
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MEBEPERERCERRIANTE - 7
EEREEN RAFEARN  EBEXRFEKRA
7 34 BHB TS R F L 2,200 AT - M
FFERBWRALS.02EE L1155 T F R84
2,1008& T °

BBurger KingEBms @ ALBELLREH =
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HAFETAR 4 7 BK AsiaPac, Pte. Ltd. 15 25
2 SREMARE - EBREKCFAEERSE
T IRARFER Re 2 ER R KR
R Bt A EHEBRAL12EET
mEF F AN AB500 88T MEFEABR
AH)1.43 AT BIBFEN1.41E5TT -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EITEHREE

DIVISION HIGHLIGHTS (continued)

During the year, the Group shared 40% Coland’s net profit of
approximately HK$2 million, versus an net loss of approximately
HK$31 million in last year while at the same time the Company’s
corporate guarantees for Coland’s banking credit facilities was

reduced by HK$136 million as compared with last year.

A NEW WAY FORWARD

As the single largest shareholder of the Company, | intend the
Company to focus more resources on new investment opportunities
in Mainland China as and when identified. In this regard, |
introduced to the Board four new directors in February 2013, who
have extensive corporate finance, mergers and acquisition and
financial expertise. We are reviewing and updating our long-term
strategy to provide better clarity on our direction and business
model while striving to create value for our shareholders, customers,
employees, and business partners. In the short-term, the Board
will devote resources in securing new banking facilities and re-

arranging existing banking facilities for its existing operations.

On 3rd May 2013, the Company received an offer from an offeror
for the possible acquisition of the Company’s total equity interest in
Coland, a 40% joint venture (the “Offer”). The Board consider the
Offer inadequate and will continue to negotiate with the offeror for

improvements.

Going forward, the Group seeks to continue to grow its business,
supported by a sound inventory management system for increased
efficiencies and cost reduction to help minimise business risk.
We will carefully evaluate and review options as to how we may
effectively manage, deploy and apply available cash resources to
meet operational and investment needs and for the benefit of our

shareholders as a whole.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2REEIZRERAA
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

APPRECIATION

We believe updating our long-term strategy, setting operating goals,
motivating our staff and sharing success with business partners will
be important ingredients for the Group’s success, particularly during
this critical transition period. | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere gratitude to our business partners, our
customers, the Board and our employees for their trust and support
in the year. On behalf of the Board, | would also like to offer our
utmost appreciation to our shareholders for their confidence in our

Company.

Ding Yi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19th June 2013

&

BPRERERERE  HERLER R’AR
TH&R - ARBEBEHD ZRRIDAEEKD)
ZEELE  LHGESMRZEREH - KA
HHERBEBEH TP BEFENEBRAK
FEZEERXS  TERREEERRRYE A
RAZEOBARLHE -

e
Tz

B ZE—=FRHATNH

2012/13 ANNUAL REPORT Fif

7



8

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DM

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The weak and uncertain global economy created a very challenging
environment which negatively impacted the demand for our
surface mount technology (“SMT”) equipment during the fiscal
year ended 31st March 2013 (the “year”). Our Group recorded a
consolidated net loss attributable to shareholders of the Company
of approximately HK$33,491,000 on revenue of approximately
HK$854,323,000 for the year, compared to a consolidated net loss
of approximately HK$241,061,000 on revenue of approximately
HK$1,035,410,000 (restated) during the fiscal year ended 31st
March 2012 (“last year”).

Below is a summary of the financial and business highlights of each
major business division. The profit/loss figures, disclosed below, do
not include any intra-group charges, as they are eliminated upon

consolidation.

HI-TECH DISTRIBUTION AND SERVICES DIVISION

Our hi-tech distribution and services division conducted business
through our wholly-owned subsidiary, American Tec Company
Limited (“American Tec”). American Tec is a leader in Asia in the
distribution, sales and service of SMT equipment, with a history
of more than 25 years serving its customers in the hi-technology
sector. Our team of more than 240 engineers and customer care
staff are located in more than 25 cities in China, Vietham and
India. Customers include most of the major telecom and electronic
equipment manufacturers in the world. We are especially well
positioned with the growing base of Chinese manufacturers. Our
suppliers include leading equipment and solutions manufacturers
from Asia, the United States and Europe. With its leading market
position, American Tec signed new distribution and service
agreements with leading SMT and software suppliers during the
year to complement our major partnership with Fuji Machine Mfg.

Co., Ltd. to offer a comprehensive and competitive SMT solution.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2REEIZRERAA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE D

HI-TECH DISTRIBUTION AND SERVICES DIVISION

(continued)

During the year, this division recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$733,955,000,

last year. This year on year drop in revenue was mainly due to the

representing a decrease of about 17.8% from

substantial drop on customer demand for SMT equipment across
the sector under the uncertain economic environment in the year.
Management had implemented a number of cost control programs,
improved commission and other service income and got higher
margin contributions from sales of peripheral equipment sourced
from newly signed suppliers in the year to offset the decline in
customer demand. Hence, American Tec managed to achieve a net
profit of approximately HK$21,942,000 in the year, comparable to a
net profit of about HK$21,246,000 in last year.

FISHMEAL, FISH OIL AND AQUATIC PRODUCTS
DIVISION

Our fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products division conducted
business through our 40% joint venture, Coland Group Limited
(“Coland”).

fishmeal, aquatic feed and fish oil in Asia today.

It is one of the leading providers and processors of

During the year, there was a rebound of the demand for brown
fishmeal and its market price due to increase in seasonal demand
from the aquaculture industry in China in the first three quarters.
Demand for Coland’s processed fish oil products remained strong
in the first three quarters with stable market price. However, there
was a significant drop in the market price of brown fishmeal and
fish oil in the fourth quarter due to increase in global supply and
downward trend in market price. As a result, the Group shared 40%
of Coland’s net profit of approximately HK$2,052,000 on revenue
of approximately HK$597,664,000 for the year, versus a net loss
of approximately HK$31,238,000 on revenue of approximately
HK$744,236,000 in last year.

On 3rd May 2013, the Group received an offer from an offeror for
the possible acquisition of the Company’s total equity interest in
Coland. As at the date of this report, the Board was still negotiating
with the offeror for improvement. In respect of the Company’s total
equity interest in Coland, an impairment of approximately HK$45

million was provided during the year.

ERREmSERRHED @)

RAFER - 9 85U A 4K 733,955,000 7
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B BE R AR F E 8155 R JF 49 21,942,000 7%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE DM

BRANDED FOOD DIVISION

During the year, management focused on launching new products
and implementing cost control measures. The division recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$120,368,000 with a net profit of
approximately HK$4,556,000 (including a net decrease of provision
for lease obligations of approximately HK$19,574,000 during the
year), versus a net loss of approximately HK$141,334,000 on
revenue of approximately HK$143,006,000 in last year. Operating
loss before income tax at restaurant level (excluding assets
impairment loss and a provision related to restaurant leases) was

further reduced by approximately 563.3% year-on-year.

OUTLOOK

Overall Summary

We expect the volatility in the global economy to continue in
2013. This will continue to offer various challenges to our existing
businesses in the coming quarters, ranging from cautious customer
demand to pressure on margins. Our focus will be to manage cash,
costs and risks and, to build our strength during these times by
working with our management teams to improve capability and

efficiency.
Hi-tech Distribution and Services Division

In the near term, we expect that our customers will continue to be
more cautious in their capital investment plan, which may impact
on our revenue and margins. With this outlook, we will continue to
minimize the impact from the economic downturn and monitor our
working capital, gross profit margin, operating costs and foreign
exchange risk closely with a view to protect our cash flow and

profitability.
Fishmeal, Fish Oil and Aquatic Products Division

In the near term, we foresee rebounding in demand for our brown
fishmeal in the domestic market due to warmer weather but we
expect downward trend in market price due to forecast increase
in global supply. We will continue to urge Coland’s management
to closely monitor the price volatility for the fishmeal and fish oil
businesses and closely manage inventory, cash flow and operating

expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE D

OUTLOOK (continued)

Branded Food Division

In this economic climate, the quick service restaurant business
is expected to have increased demand as people look for lower
cost alternatives for dining out. Burger King continues to provide
premium products in the market place with a great brand. Working
in close partnership with BK AsiaPac, Pte. Ltd., the franchisor of
Burger King, we will continue our critical review on the performance
of each restaurant while developing cost effective promotional

programs to attract customers for sales growth.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND
CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31st March 2013, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$556,251,000 (2012: HK$884,053,000 (restated)).
As at 31st March 2013, the Company had provided guarantees of
HK$508,826,000 (31st March 2012: HK$508,868,000 (restated);
1st April 2011: HK$425,660,000 (restated)) with respect to banking

facilities made available to its subsidiaries.

As at 31st March 2013, the Company had provided guarantee of
HK$121,840,000 (2012: HK$257,520,000 (restated); 1st April 2011:
HK$61,040,000 (restated)) with respect to banking facilities made

available to its joint ventures.

As at 31st March 2013, the Group had borrowings of approximately
HK$16,504,000 (2012: HK$61,871,000 (restated)).

ratio (borrowings divided by equity attributable to shareholders of

The gearing

the Company) of the Group was 0.02 as at 31st March 2013, as
compared to 0.05 (restated) as at 31st March 2012.

RE(#)
R B R 2 5B

R ZEBERER - M ARBERRRE 2R
B BMRERGEEEG 2T KBS HEEM -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERENWR D

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF INVESTMENTS
AND SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31st March 2013, the Group had no significant investments.
There were no material acquisitions or disposals of investments and

subsidiaries during the year.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The business of the Group was primarily transacted in HK$, USS$,
Yen and Renminbi. The Group’s cash and bank deposits, including
pledged bank deposits, were mainly denominated in HK$. The
foreign currency exposure of the Group is mainly driven by its
business divisions. The Group attempts to minimise its foreign
currency exposure through (i) matching its payables for purchases
against its receivables on sales and (ii) maintain sufficient foreign
currency cash balances to settle the foreign currency payables. We
will continue to monitor closely the exchange rate between US$ and
Yen and will make necessary hedging arrangements to minimise its
foreign currency exposure arising from foreign currency fluctuation

in the future.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2013, the Company had provided guarantees of
approximately HK$630,666,000 (2012: HK$766,388,000 (restated))
with respect to banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries

and joint ventures.

NET ASSET VALUE

Consolidated net asset value attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company per ordinary share was approximately HK$0.723 as
at 31st March 2013 which reflected a decrease of HK$0.224 from
the corresponding figure as at 31st March 2012 of approximately
HK$0.947 (restated to reflect the share consolidation approved by
the Company’s shareholders on 14th September 2012).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31st March 2013, the Group employed 683 (2012: 865
(restated)) staff. Salaries and annual bonuses are determined
according to positions and performance of the employees.
Remuneration policies are reviewed annually by the management
and remuneration packages are structured to take into account
the comparable level of the market. The Group provides on-the-
job training and training subsidies to its employees in addition to
pension schemes and medical insurance. Total staff costs including
contribution to retirement benefit schemes incurred during the year
amounted to approximately HK$101,655,000 (2012: HK$102,470,000
(restated)).

COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

There was no material change in capital commitments since 31st
March 2013.

Operating lease commitments

As at 31st March 2013, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

BEHE RFMER

RZZE—=F=ZA=+—H8 A%BEEM683%
(ZE—Z—F : 865 B (KEY))BEL - FHrakF
BICHIREEZBI RFEAETE - ERESTF
RETHBERCE - MEBAES 2 EWME Z A LR
KFETAL o AREEME T & B IR RIS &3
mED  BMERSERBRERRRE - RAFE
NZBEBIRA(BERKEFGFEHRZONR
101,655,000 jt(= T — = 4 : 102,470,000
BT (EES])) -

i

AR

A-E—Z4ZA=f—AR EAFRITES
KEB -

5 TR A

R-B—=£=A=+—0  AEEREZET
THBEEHE - RRFERE 2 RIEHE S 05
MBI R -

As at As at As at

31st March 31st March 1st April

2013 2012 2011

—8—= —E——F —E——%F

=H=+—H —A=+—H mA—H

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)

(#s7) (#=:7)

Within one year 1F AR 30,777 31,200 29,288

In the second to fifth years, F2FEELF

inclusive (BEERWE) 24,013 38,728 20,247
54,790 69,928 49,535
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWmE DM

COMMITMENTS (continued) EEE)
In respect of the above non-cancellable operating lease MR A A ETHEm S EERTAEE
commitments, the following provision for onerous contracts has B

been recognised:

As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
R-Z—= RZE—Z%F RZT——%F
2013 2012 2011
—E-=5F —T—=F —E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
Onerous lease contracts BEHEEH
Within one year —FLAR 9,300 15,287 —
In the second to fifth years, F2FEELF
inclusive (PIEERMF) 9,160 22,747 —
18,460 38,034 —

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 17.24 OF BIERLETRBE17.24 2 FERE
THE GEM LISTING RULES

The following is a condensed consolidated statement of financial BIEAIER ETHEA7T24ERTE UL TASD
position as at 31st March 2013 of Coland Group Limited, a joint BEEEARABN(ANEEEE40% B AR A
venture, of which the Group has an equity interest of 40%, as BHRE VR - BE-=F=A=1+—HZHEHREE
required therein under rule 17.24 of the GEM Listing Rules: Bk & ¢
HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets IERBNEE 362,782
Inventories FE 508,602
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRESEZEEE 80,853
Other current assets HibmehEE 267,838
Bank borrowings RITIEE (507,637)
Other current liabilities B nsamE (274,753)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (5,081)
Net assets BEFE 432,604
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ding Yi, Chairman

Mr. Ding Yi, aged 41, joined the Company in February 2013. Mr.
Ding has over 19 years of experience in the financial services
industry, including over 7 years of experience in asset management.
Mr. Ding is a responsible officer of Head & Shoulders Asset
Management Limited (“H&S”) licensed by the Securities and Futures
Commission under the Securities and Futures Ordinance to carry out
type 9 (asset management) regulated activity since May 2012. He
was a responsible officer of Head & Shoulders Securities Limited,
which wholly-owns H&S, for the same regulated activity from
November 2010 to May 2012. Mr. Ding was the responsible officer
of Taishan Capital Limited (April 2008 to October 2010) and Ginger
Capital Management Limited (November 2004 to March 2006), both
privately-held asset management companies, for various regulated
activities. Prior to that, he worked for various financial institutions,
as well as in an international accounting firm. Mr. Ding received
a Bachelor of Mathematical Sciences degree from the University
of Adelaide and a Master of Business Administration degree from
Australian Graduate School of Management, University of New South
Wales. Mr. Ding is the Chairman of the nomination committee and a

member of the remuneration committee and of the Company.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

James Tsiolis, Deputy Chairman

Mr. James Tsiolis, aged 45, joined the Company in December 2010
and was appointed Deputy Chairman of the Company in April 2012.
Mr. Tsiolis has 19 years of experience in equity funds and capital
markets. He is the Chief Executive Officer and a founder of Strategic
Capital Management Ltd (“SCM”) since 2000. Prior to SCM, Mr.
Tsiolis served as Head of Research, ipac Securities since 1997. He
also worked as a Senior Investment Analyst of ASSIRT Investment &
Technology and a Quantitative Analyst of James Capel Australia Ltd.
Mr. Tsiolis serves as a chairman of Optimal Choice Pty Ltd (trading
as Investment Products). He is also a Governor of Australian
Archaeological Institute at Athens and a member of Australian
Institute of Management, The Association of Superannuation Funds
of Australia Limited and Financial Planning Association of Australia
Limited. Mr. Tsiolis is the Chairman of SCM Equities Pty Limited. He
is also a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.
He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Economics from Macquarie
University, Sydney and a Graduate Certificate Quantitative Finance
from University of Technology, Sydney.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2REEIZRERAA
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Joseph Chan Nap Kee

Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee, aged 52, joined the Company in
February 2013. He is the chairman and acting chief executive officer
of Kaisun Energy Group Limited, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (“GEM”) with a stock code
8203. He was appointed as an executive director of Kaisun Energy
Group Limited with effect from 19th September 2008. Mr. Chan
has approximately twenty seven years of experience in commercial
and investment banking, and asset management. Since 1994, Mr.
Chan has been a founding partner of Oriental Patron Financial
Group where he is also an executive director of Oriental Patron
Asia Limited and Oriental Patron Securities Limited. Oriental Patron
Asia Limited is the investment manager of OP Financial Investments
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
with a stock code of 1140. Mr. Chan is also a non-executive director
of Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited with effect
from 15th October 2007, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange with a stock code of 357. From 1992 to 1994,
he was also the co-head of Credit Agricole Asset Management
South Asia Limited. From 1986 to 1994, Mr. Chan was the deputy
manager of Credit Agricole and he was in charge of the China
business. Mr. Chan completed a diploma in China Investment and
Trade from Peking University in 1989. He also obtained a Master’s
degree in International Marketing from the University of Strathclyde
in 1995. Mr. Chan holds licenses respectively of Type 1 (dealing
in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising
on corporate finance), and Type 9 (asset management) under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong

Kong).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Joseph Liang Hsien Tse

Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse, aged 58, joined the Company
in February 2013. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of LifeTech Science Corporation, a company
listed on the GEM with a stock code of 8122, with effect from 22nd
October, 2011.
development at United International College (“UIC”) in Zhuhai, the
PRC since October 2011.
— Finance of TWS Industrial (Holdings) Ltd since 6th October
2011,
Liang has extensive experience in finance and accounting. From
October 2009 to September 2011, Mr.

director of the financial planning and development department

Mr. Liang served as special consultant on campus

He was the executive vice president

a private company engaged in battery production. Mr.

Liang was the managing

at UIC and was responsible for serving financial advisory and
human resources management functions. During October 2005 to
December 2008, he was a director at Shenzhen Alclear Consulting
Limited, a company engaging in financial, corporate management
and investment consultancy services, and was responsible for
developing accounting training in the PRC. Between August 2001
and October 2005, Mr.
Digital Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the

Liang served various roles at Skyworth
Stock Exchange with a stock code of 751, including as the group’s
financial controller and company secretary in charge of finance
and management information system functions. From November
1993 to August 2001,

International Terminals Limited for Yantian International Container

he was the finance manager at Hongkong

Terminals, both companies being container terminal companies
managed by the Hutchison Port Holdings Trust. Mr. Liang completed
a diploma in business management from Hong Kong Baptist
College in December 1977. He also obtained a Master’'s degree
in Professional Accounting from University of Texas, Austin in May
1981. Mr. Liang later obtained a Bachelor’s degree in language and
translation from Hong Kong Open University in December 2007.
Mr. Liang is a member of the Texas Society of Certified Public
Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(formerly known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) since June
1982 and Association of Certified Chartered Accountants (ACCA)
since May 1982. Mr. Liang is the Chairman of the audit committee
and remuneration committee, and a member of the nomination

committee of the Company.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)
Stephen Luk Kai Ming

Mr. Stephen Luk Kai Ming, aged 45, joined the Company in
February 2013. He is the director of Montres Journe (Hong Kong)
Limited (“MJ Hong Kong”) and Montres Journe (Bejing) Limited
(*MJ Beijing”) since 2006 and 2009 respectively, both the exclusive
authorized retailers in the PRC of F.P. Journe, a high-end watch
manufacturer of Switzerland. Between 2010 and 2012, Mr. Luk
was also the director of Independence (Hong Kong) Limited, the
authorized retailer of a number of independent watchmakers,
tailors, and shoemakers. He was also the visiting lecturer of
Microeconomics and Macroeconomics for MBA at the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (International College for Innovative Training
at Zhuhai, the PRC) in August 2002. Mr. Luk took positions as tutor
and teaching assistant at University of California Berkeley (“*UC
Berkeley”) between 1995 and 1998. Before that, he was a tutor
at University of Southern California (“USC”) from 1990 to 1991.
Mr. Luk has been the Adjunct Assistant Professor of the School
of Accounting and Finance at Hong Kong Polytechnic University
since 2006, and was Assistant Professor from 2001 to 2005. Mr.
Luk has been a treasurer of Asian Competition Forum at Hong Kong
Polytechnic University since 2005. He was the committee member of
International Association for Energy Economics (Hong Kong Affiliate)
during 2005 and 2008. Mr. Luk was also a jury member of the
Geneva Watchmaking Grand Prix, being the first and only Chinese,
from 2004 to 2007. Mr. Luk published various academic journals
in relation to economics, mathematics and the electricity market.
In addition, he has participated in various consultation projects in
relation to economics and the electricity market. Mr. Luk graduated
from USC with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics in May 1991.
He also completed a Ph.D. in Economics at UC Berkeley in May
2001. During his study in USC and UC Berkeley, He has received
numerous honors and awards including the title of Phi Beta Kappa,
the highest honor of outstanding student in the United States of
America. Mr. Luk is a member of the audit committee, remuneration

committee and nomination committee of the Company.

BYFHITES @)

B R

PERRBAZCAE - 4558  RZZE—=F_AMAR
DA - FEZEERNFER_TETNFRDA A
Montres Journe XA B ER A ([MJ Hong
Kong]) % Montres Journe$Z Xt R AR A A
(TMJ Beijing DMEE - MEARXRH/IHLHR
FREEHFP. EMNTRE BREEZTER -
RZB-—TEE T —EHH EXENE
Independence (Hong Kong) Limited (It &%
TRIGERAD MR ERZBREETER)D
EF -FERZETEZFNAREBEIRE(F
B TR 8 BB BI37 AT 55 31 20 ) R s B 2 R R
BAESENOCXERETERHEM - EXAER
—NANEFZE—NN\FEREEEB M KEE
BHDR(TUC Berkeley]) ¥E{TERN K228
B o WA BR—ANEFE-NN—FH
MAZHEMMAZ([USCI) 2 Bah - PExA
E-TTAFRATAEIREBSHREMBMR
RAPBHYR R FE2_TTRFHE
BYBEHE  ERtE _EERFRATAEL
AREGHRFHENFE BR_TTHFEZ
T N\FHRBERERECEZABETE,»SE
o AR _ETNEE_TRHFHMRRA
WNE R T KRR B M — — (2 AFEEK
8o BEAERRABLE BERENMSEHNE
BB o N BB MNESEE BEERN
BENMSHNHERIER - ERAEEERUSC R
—NMN—FEREGBEEZEXE LM - BITR
—ZET—F A ARMKUC Berkeley & EEE+
Bf] - FAUSC K UC Berkeley & HAR - &
BZIBEENIEE - BFEPhi Beta Kappa®#
i REBEFEENRESEE - EEEREAR
RIEREEES  FWEESRREEZEENKE -

mi A

\

2012/13 ANNUAL REPORT F3f

19



20

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)
Kenneth Kon Hiu King

Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King, aged 51, joined the Company in
February 2013. He was appointed as a director and deputy chief
executive of Dan Form Holdings Company Limited (“Dan Form”) in
October 1994, and re-designated as its non-executive director in
October 2012. Dan Form is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with a stock code of 271 and owns significant property
interests in Hong Kong. Between 1999 and 2007, Mr. Kon was also
an independent non-executive director of Jingwei Textile Machinery
Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with a stock code of 350. Mr. Kon has been involved in
the planning of many large-scale investments and development
projects in the PRC and Hong Kong and has over twenty-five
years’ experience in investment and management in manufacturing
industries and property development. He also has extensive
experience in securities trading, corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions and corporate restructuring. Mr. Kon graduated from
Middlesex University in the United Kingdom with a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Studies in 1987. Mr. Kon is a member of the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee

of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Henry Law Wai Fai, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary

Mr. Henry Law Wai Fai, aged 45, joined the Company in June
2013. Mr. Law has extensive professional experience in financial
management, investor relations, company secretarial and corporate
governance, in particular over 12 years of accounting and company
secretarial experience at listed companies in Hong Kong. He holds
a master’'s degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from
the City University of Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the

Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Ong Kay Huat, Chief Executive Officer of American Tec

Company Limited

Mr. Ong Kay Huat, aged 46, joined American Tec Company Limited
(“American Tec”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in
Aug 2010. Mr. Ong has over 24 years working experience in the
electronic industry. He has worked for equipment distributors,
suppliers and service/solution providers. Prior to joining American
Tec, he was the President of Far East for Valor Computerized
System Far East Limited (“Valor”). Prior to joining Valor, he had held
various senior management positions with increasing responsibility
in Panasonic and Universal Instruments. Mr. Ong holds two master
degrees in Business Administration and International Marketing

Management with Macquarie University of Australia.
Lam Po Ting Tilly, General Manager of Perfect Combo Limited

Ms. Lam Po Ting Tilly, aged 35, joined Perfect Combo Limited
(“Perfect Combo”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in
November 2012. Ms. Lam has 17 years working experience in the
food and beverage industry. Prior to joining Perfect Combo, she
held senior positions of operations in a number of international
renowned restaurant and café groups, both in Hong Kong and

overseas.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEABE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company endeavours to maintain high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders, and follows the
principles set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM Listing
Rules”).

The Board of the Company will continue reviewing and updating
its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure
compliance with applicable codes and standards.

Throughout the year ended 31st March 2013 (the “year”),
the Company complied with all the Code provisions with the
exceptions addressed below and, where appropriate, adopted the
recommended best practices set out in the Code.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. However, the Board’s decisions are implemented
under the leadership of the Chairman with the involvement and
support of the chief executive officer(s) and general manager(s) of
the Company’s operating companies. The Board believes that the
balance of authority and division of responsibility are adequately
ensured by the operations of the Board and management which
comprise experienced and high calibre individuals.

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific terms. However, Mr. James Tsiolis, non-
executive director elected by the shareholders at the general
meeting of the Company has not been appointed for a specific term
but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings of the Company and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Due to other important engagements at the relevant time, a few
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors were unable to be present at the general meetings of
the Company held in September 2012. However, the Chairman of
the Board and the chairmen of the Board committees and/or his
delegate have attended the annual general meeting and special
general meeting of the Company held in September 2012.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEABE

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set
out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of
all directors of the Company, all directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Required Standard during the year ended 31st
March 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at 31st March 2013, the Board comprised of six directors, with
one executive director, two non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors, more than one-third of the
Board. The composition of the Board during the year is set out as

follows:
Executive Directors

Ding Yi (Chairman, appointed on 4th February 2013)

Yu Wang Tak (stepped down as Chairman and re-designated as
non-executive director on 2nd February 2013 and subsequently
resigned on 19th February 2013)

Non-Executive Directors

James Tsiolis (Deputy Chairman)
Goran Sture Malm (retired on 14th September 2012)

Jason Matthew Brown (Enoch Yi-Nong Wu as alternate, both
resigned on 17th December 2012)

Joseph Chan Nap Kee (appointed on 19th February 2013)

Takeshi Kadota (resigned on 19th February 2013)
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FYITES

James Tsiolis (/% /&)

Goran Sture Malm
(R=ZF—=FANA+PIHEF)

Jason Matthew Brown (18255 FEE -
AR ZE——F+ = 1+ HEE)

MYBER=ZF—=F=-A+NAEZT)

Takeshi Kadota
(R-—F—=F— A+ NHET)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEABE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Joseph Liang Hsien Tse (appointed on 19th February 2013)
Stephen Luk Kai Ming (appointed on 19th February 2013)
Kenneth Kon Hiu King (appointed on 19th February 2013)
Kenny Tam King Ching (resigned on 19th February 2013)
Philip Ma King Huen (resigned on 19th February 2013)
George Forrai (appointed on 30th June 2012 and

resigned on 19th February 2013)

Biographical details of the current directors are set out in the
section of “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
15 to 21.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times every year to determine
overall strategic direction and objectives and approve quarterly,
interim and annual results, budgets and other significant matters.
At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meetings are given to all
directors, who are all given an opportunity to attend and include
matters in the agenda for discussion. Apart from formal meetings,
matters requiring board approval are arranged by means of
circulation of written resolutions. Senior management from time
to time provides to the directors information on activities and
development of the business of the Group. The company secretary
takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of

matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings.

The directors can seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
According to the current Board’s practices, should a potential
conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or director of
the Company arise, the matter is discussed in a Board meeting, as
opposed to being dealt with by written resolution. Independent non-
executive directors with no conflict of interest should be present at
meetings dealing with conflict issues. When the Board considers
any proposal or transaction in which a director has a conflict of

interest, the director declares his interest and abstains from voting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEABE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EExg#)
Frequency of Meetings and Attendance BRAEREERR
Eight Board meetings and two general meetings were held during RAFER » HBIT)/\UREZS2SHEMMARE
the year. The attendance of each director at the meetings of the AE - ZEBHFETIRSZESTHALEK
Board and each of the committees and general meetings is set out BREeZBEREIWOT :
below:
Number of Meetings attended/held
bR/ BreEny
Annual Special
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
B3 EHZEE  §MZEe  REZEE  REEFAE  RREMAE
Executive Directors #iEs
Ding Yi (Chairman) Tle(%E)
(appointed on 4th February 2013) (R=E-=FZFIAEESR) 33 - - - - -
Yu Wang Tak BV
(stepped down as Chairman and (RoE-ZFZFZREHF
re-designated as non-executive director TERFEFANEE RER
on 2nd February 2013 and subsequently ZE-CEZF1ARBF)
resigned on 19th February 2013) 5/6 - 212 212 1 1
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
James Tsiolis (Deputy Chairman) James Tsiolis(5/2/%) 6/8 1 - - ot 0t
Goran Sture Malm Goran Sture Malm
(retired on 14th September 2012) (R-E-—F) A1RAER) 202 - - - 1t 11
Jason Matthew Brown * Jason Matthew Brown * 03 - - - 0l 0
(Enoch Yi-Nong W as alternate, both (RERBENEE WALR
resigned on 17th December 2012) ZE-CEFCAHAER) (33) - - - (11) (11)
Joseph Chan Nap Kee R
(appointed on 19th February 2013) (R=F-=F=F11FEFE) 10 - - - - -
Takeshi Kadota Takeshi Kadota
(resigned on 19th February 2013) (R=E-=F=F11A8F) 6/6 - - - o on
Independent Non-Executive Directors BudnEs
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse 2Eh
(appointed on 19th February 2013) (R=-F-=F=F11FEFE) 10 - - - - -
Stephen Luk Kai Ming R
(appointed on 19th February 2013) (REF-Z£ZF1NAEEH) il - - - - -
Kenneth Kon Hiu King TED
(appointed on 19th February 2013) (RoF-=6=F1 N FEZH) 1h - - - - -
Kenny Tam King Ching ERE
(resigned on 19th February 2013) (R-F-Z£-F+1AES) 6/6 44 22 2 1t 1h
Philip Ma King Huen 53k
(resigned on 19th February 2013) (R-F-=£-F1HREF) 6/6 pIls 22 2 on on
George Forrai George Forrai
(appointed on 30th June 2012 and (RoF-——E A= THEZHT
resigned on 19th February 2013) RoE-ZF-f1ARER) 505 33 22 il ot 0t

* excluding attendance by alternate director

Y TERETEFEZLHEAE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEABE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Roles and responsibilities

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. They are collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board is accountable to shareholders for the strategic
development of the Group with the goal of maximising long-term
shareholder value, while balancing broader stakeholder interests.
Given the diversity and volume of the Company’s business,
responsibility for execution and daily operations is delegated to

management.

The directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size
and composition to provide checks and balances that safeguard the
interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole. All the
directors have given sufficient time and attention to the Company’s

affairs.

During the year, the executive directors are responsible for the day-
to-day management of the Group’s operations. These directors
conduct regular meetings with the senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries, at which operational issue and

financial performance are evaluated.

The non-executive directors provide the Company with a wide
range of expertise and experience. They bring advice and judgment
on issues relating to the Group’s strategy, performance, risk and
management process, and corporate governance through their

contribution at Board and committee meetings.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, newly appointed
directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting
and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independence

The Company has three independent non-executive directors, one
of whom has appropriate financial management expertise, during
the year ended 31st March 2013 except for the three months
period following the re-designation of Mr. Yu Wang Tak from
an independent non-executive director to an executive director
of the Company effective from 1st April 2012. The Company
subsequently appointed Mr. George Forrai as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 30th June 2012. Since
then, the Company has three independent non-executive directors
as required under rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules. Each
independent non-executive director has given the Company
an annual confirmation of his independence or confirmation of
independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, and
the Company considers these directors to be independent under
the guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules. Up to the date of
this Report, the Board has not been aware of the occurrence of
any events which would cause it to believe that their independence
has been impaired. As at the date of this Report, the Board has not
been aware of any relationship between the Board members of the

Company.
Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other
relevant regulatory requirements. All directors shall participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their

knowledge and skills.

The directors are from time to time provided materials on
amendments to or updates on the relevant laws, rules and
regulations to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company has been encouraging the
directors and officers to participate in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the GEM Listing
Rules, applicable regulatory requirements and corporate
governance practices organised by professional bodies and/or
independent auditors to further improve their relevant knowledge

and skills.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEABE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) BEE®(4)

FEEXRR(E)

BHEARSAY 2REFCEBLFABLE
EakRAZHNeAMEFRERERAEELZ
AR 2HREERBEEEEREY - RAFE
A EREEZ2BBEREINT

Continuing Professional Development (continued)

Up to the date of this Report, all directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by
attending seminar relating to corporate governance and regulations

or by reading materials relevant to their duties and responsibilities.

The participation by individual director during the year is set out

below:

Read regulatory
updates/materials

Attend conference/
seminars/workshop

MEEE HEgE/
BHAE/ER Hig/ TS
Executive Directors YiTES
Ding Yi Tz
(Chairman, appointed on 4th February 2013) (T R-F—=#-FIHEZF) v/ v
Yu Wang Tak REE
(stepped down as Chairman and re-designated (R-F—=F- - HRITERAT
as NED on 2nd February 2013 and subsequently ~ AHH7TEEF  EER - F—=#-4
resigned on 19th February 2013) FABEHE) / v
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
James Tsiolis (Deputy Chairman) James Tsiolis (/£ /F) v/ v
Goran Sture Malm Goran Sture Malm
(retired on 14th September 2012) (R-ZF——FNF1+PARE) /
Jason Matthew Brown Jason Matthew Brown
(Enoch Yi-Nong Wu as alternate, both resigned (RIERBEHFEE  WAHR
on 17th December 2012) TE-——FF A HET) v/ v
Joseph Chan Nap Kee B
(appointed on 19th February 2013) (R-F—=F=F+NHEZT) v/ v
Takeshi Kadota Takeshi Kadota
(resigned on 19th February 2013) (RZF—=F=F+NAFF) v/ v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse 28R
(appointed on 19th February 2013) (R-F—=F=F+NHEZT) v/ v
Stephen Luk Kai Ming BERTEA
(appointed on 19th February 2013) (R-F—=F=F+NHEZT) v/
Kenneth Kon Hiu King FEY
(appointed on 19th February 2013) (R-F—=F=F+NHEZT) v/ v
Kenny Tam King Ching EHRIE
(resigned on 19th February 2013) (RZF—=F=F+NAFF) v/ v
Philip Ma King Huen i =vc
(resigned on 19th February 2013) (R-F—=F=F+NAFF) v/
George Forrai (appointed on 30th June 2012 and ~ George Forrai (R =F——F; X f=+H
resigned on 19th February 2013) BEAUR -_F—=F- A+ NHEF) v/ v
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SEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Insurance

The Company arranges, and will review annually, appropriate

insurance cover in respect of legal against its directors and officers.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

As at the date of this Report, the Company has Mr. Ding Yi to
assume the role as the Chairman of the Board and the executive
director of the Company, with no chief executive officer. The Board'’s
decisions are implemented under the leadership of the Chairman
with the involvement and support of the chief executive officer(s)
and general manager(s) of the Company’s operating companies.
The Board believes that the balance of authority and division of
responsibility are adequately ensured by the operations of the
Board and management which comprise experienced and high

calibre individuals.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of office of each of the existing non-executive directors
is for a period of three years unless terminated by either party with
one month’s written notice, except for Mr. James Tsiolis who was
not appointed for a specific term but elected by the shareholders
at general meetings. All the non-executive directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings

in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEABE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely
nomination committee, remuneration committee and audit
committee. All of these committees have their respective terms
of reference which accord with the principles set out in the Code

contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.
Nomination Committee

The nomination committee currently comprises four members, a
majority of whom are independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse, Mr. Stephen Luk Kai Ming and Mr.
Kenneth Kon Hiu King and is chaired by Mr. Ding Yi, chairman and

executive director of the Company.

The nomination committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, evaluation of board size, structure and
composition, management of board succession with reference to
certain guidelines including appropriate professional knowledge
and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal
skills, and time commitments of members. The Board has adopted a
set of the revised terms of reference of the nomination committee to
align with the provisions set out in the Code. The terms of reference
of the committee setting out its authority, duties and responsibilities

are available on both the websites of the Company and the GEM.

In addition to the committee meeting, the nomination committee
also dealt with matters by way of circulation. During the year, the
committee has reviewed the board composition, the appointment
and re-appointment of directors and also succession planning
for the chairman of the Board; and made recommendations on
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. Two meetings were held during the year ended
31st March 2013 with an average attendance rate of 100%. The
attendance of each director at the meetings of the committee is set
out in the section headed “Frequency of Meetings and Attendance”

of this Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee currently comprises four members,
namely Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse (committee chairman), Mr.
Stephen Luk Kai Ming and Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King, all being
independent non-executive directors, and Mr. Ding Yi, chairman
and executive director of the Company.

The Board has adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of
the remuneration committee to align with the provisions set out
in the Code. The committee has adopted the model where it has
delegated responsibility to determine the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of the non-
executive directors. The terms of reference of the committee setting
out its authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the
websites of the Company and the GEM.

The remuneration committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy and
overseeing the remuneration packages of the executive directors
and senior management. It takes into consideration of factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions of directors and senior
management.

In addition to the committee meeting, the remuneration committee
also dealt with matters by way of circulation. During the year,
the committee has reviewed and determined the remuneration
packages of the executive director and senior management of
the Company, and approved the terms of the executive directors’
service contracts. Two meetings were held during the year ended
31st March 2013 with an average attendance rate of 100%. The
attendance of each director at the meetings of the committee is set
out in the section headed “Frequency of Meetings and Attendance”
of this Report.

For the year ended 31st March 2013, total directors’ remuneration
amounted to approximately HK$6,962,000 (2012: HK$4,413,000).

Remuneration of the executive directors is prudently designed to
attract, motivate and retain them to formulate strategies and to
oversee operational matters of the Group and to reward them for
enhancing value to the shareholders. Details of the remuneration of
the directors for the year are set out in note 8 to the accompanying
financial statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

The audit committee currently comprises three members, namely
Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse, Mr. Stephen Luk Kai Ming and Mr.
Kenneth Kon Hiu King, all being independent non-executive
directors. The committee is chaired by Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse
who has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in

financial matters.

The Board has adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of
the audit committee to align with the provisions set out in the Code.
The committee’s principal duties are to ensure the adequacy and
effectiveness of the accounting and financial controls of the Group,
oversee the performance of internal control systems and financial
reporting process, monitor the integrity of the financial statements
and compliance with statutory and listing requirements and to

oversee independence and qualifications of the external auditors.

The audit committee meets the external auditors at least four times
a year to discuss any area of concern during the audits or reviews.
The audit committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of
the external auditors, executive directors and senior management

are invited to attend the meetings, if required.

During the year, the audit committee has approved the nature and
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements of the Group, and was content
that the accounting policies and standards of the Group are in
accordance with the current best practices in Hong Kong. Four
meetings were held during the year with an average attendance
rate of 83%. The attendance of each Director at the meetings of the
committee is set out in the section headed “Frequency of Meetings

and Attendance” of this Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including: (a) to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (b)
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report. During the year, the Board has
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditors on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditors for the audit of the Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to approximately HK$2,302,000 (2012: HK$2,220,000)
and fee for non-audit related activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$959,000 (2012:
HK$946,000).

During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s external auditors
attributable to the Group’s interests for the audit of its joint ventures
amounted to approximately HK$420,000 (2012: HK$448,000). For
the year ended 31st March 2012, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditors attributable to the Group’s interests for non-audit
related activities of its joint ventures amounted to approximately
HK$18,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders’ interest. The internal control system is designed to
reduce, but not eliminate, risks of failure in operational systems. The
system helps to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The system aims to support

the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

The internal control system comprises a well-defined organisational
structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority
to ensure effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability
of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. The Board conducts regularly reviews of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through
reviews performed by audit committee, executive management,

internal audit department and external auditors.

During the year, the internal audit department conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control system and procedures
of the Company and its operating subsidiaries covering all
material controls, including financial, operational, compliance
and risk management, and assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, their training programs and budget. The
audit committee was well informed of the audit findings, emerging

trends and successful practices in internal auditing.

During the year, the audit committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control system through the following processes and

subsequently reported the review results to the Board:

o discussions with the executive management on areas of risk
identified

. review of risks reported by the internal audit department

. review of the external audit plans

. review of issues reported by external auditors

o review of the reports from the internal audit department, the

executive management to ensure appropriate controls are in

place and any deficiencies or irregularities, if any, are rectified
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

Based on the result of the review for the year ended 31st March
2013, the Board considered that the internal control system and
procedures of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programs and budget, are
adequate and effective and have complied with the provisions of

the Code during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary supports the Chairman, the Board and
Board committees by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The
company secretary reports to the Board and assists the Board in
functioning effectively and efficiently. She also advises the Board on
governance matters and facilitates the induction and professional
development of directors. All directors of the Company may call
upon the company secretary for advice and assistance at any time
in respect to their duties and the effective operation of the Board

and the Board committees.

During the year, Ms. Lam Yee Fan was the company secretary of the
Company. She was a full time employee of the Company and had
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Ms. Lam undertook
not less than 20 hours of relevant professional training during the

year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

According to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meeting of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. The requisition must be

lodged with the Company’s registered office.

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director of the Company are set out in the Company’s Bye-laws
and also available at the Company’s website at www.nasholdings.
com. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing to the company secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business of Hong Kong at Suite 1318,
13th Floor, Two Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
which aims at providing the shareholders and potential investors
with ready and timely access to balanced and understandable
information of the Company. The Company has established a
number of channels for maintaining an on-going dialogue with its
shareholders as follows: (a) corporate communications such as
announcement, annual reports, quarterly reports and circulars are
published and available on the GEM website at www.hkgem.com
and the Company’s website at www.nasholdings.com; (b) corporate
information is made available on the Company’s website; (c) general
meetings provide a forum for the shareholders to make comments
and exchange views with the directors and senior management,
and the poll results of the general meetings are published on the
websites of the Company and the GEM; and (d) the Company’s
share registrars’ serves the shareholders in respect of share
registration, dividend payment, change of shareholders’ particulars

and related matters.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

During the year, the Chairman of the Board and the chairmen
of the Board committees and/or his delegate have attended the
annual general meeting and general meeting of the Company
held in September 2012 to answer questions from shareholders, a
few independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors were unable to be present at the general meetings due to

other important engagements at the relevant time.

The Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws is
available on both the Company’s website at www.nasholdings.
com and the GEM website at www.hkgem.com.hk. The Board is not
aware of any significant changes in the Company’s constitutional

documents during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are ultimately responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year which gives a true
and fair view. In preparing the financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies and standard are selected and applied

consistently.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 49 and 50 of this annual

report.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
significant in maintaining investor confidence and attracting
investment. The management will devote considerate effort to
strengthen and improve the standards of the corporate governance
of the Group.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) have the pleasure of presenting
their annual report together with the audited financial statements
of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31st March
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in (i) hi-tech distribution and services:
trading of surface mount technology (“SMT”) assembly equipment,
machinery and spare parts and provision of related installation,
training, repair and maintenance services for SMT assembly
equipment; and (ii) branded food: developing and operating Burger
King restaurants in Hong Kong. Its joint ventures are principally
engaged in fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products: refining and sale
of fish oil, processing and sale of fishmeal, manufacturing and sale
of aquatic feed products, aquaculture and processing and sale of

aquatic products.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and segment results by
operating segment for the year ended 31st March 2013 is set out in

note 5 to the accompanying financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are shown in note 24 to the accompanying financial

statements.

RESULTS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st March 2013
are set out in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 51 and 52,

respectively, of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND

On 9th August 2012, the Board proposed a special dividend of
HK2 cents per ordinary share before the Capital Reorganisation
as defined in note 24 to the accompanying financial statements
(equivalent to HK20 cents per ordinary share after the Capital
Reorganisation became effective on 17th September 2012),
approximately HK$269,188,000 in aggregate. This special dividend
was approved by the Company’s shareholders at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 14th September 2012,
and was paid on 9th October 2012 to shareholders whose names
appeared on the Register of Members of the Company on 27th
September 2012.

Apart from this, the Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31st March 2013.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 25 to the accompanying financial

statements.

As at 31st March 2013, the reserves available for distribution to
the shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$946,021,000 (2012: HK$1,136,190,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is

set out on page 4 of this annual report.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and joint ventures are set
out in notes 16 and 17 to the accompanying financial statements,

respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the accompanying financial

statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings as at 31st March 2013 are set out in

note 26 to the accompanying financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year.

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME

Details of the pension schemes are set out in note 8 to the

accompanying financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year are:

Ding Yi (appointed on 4th February 2013)

Yu Wang Tak (resigned on 19th February 2013)
James Tsiolis

Goran Sture Malm (retired on 14th September 2012)

Jason Matthew Brown
(Enoch Yi-Nong Wu as alternate, both
resigned on 17th December 2012)
Takeshi Kadota (resigned on 19th February 2013)

Joseph Chan Nap Kee (appointed on 19th February 2013)
Kenny Tam King Ching (resigned on 19th February 2013)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Philip Ma King Huen (resigned on 19th February 2013)

George Forrai (appointed on 30th June 2012 and resigned on 19th
February 2013)

Stephen Luk Kai Ming (appointed on 19th February 2013)

Kenneth Kon Hiu King (appointed on 19th February 2013)

Joseph Liang Hsien Tse (appointed on 19th February 2013)

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Ding Yi who was appointed as Director by the Board on 4th
February 2013 and Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee, Mr. Stephen Luk Kai
Ming, Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King and Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse
who were appointed as Directors by the Board on 19th February
2013 shall hold office until the forthcoming general meeting and be

eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
James Tsiolis shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming

annual general meeting and be eligible for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out

on pages 15 to 21 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8 to the

accompanying financial statements.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st March 2013, remuneration payable to the

members of the senior management of the Group other than the

Executive Directors is as follows:

BREEAEME

BHE-_ZT-—=—FZA=Z+—HILFE EFHFTAE
EESREEREXKBEMMITESZRIN 2B W
T~

For the year ended 31st March

BE-A=t—HLEFE
2012

T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Basic salaries and allowances HARH 4 MoZh 3,342 4,221
Bonus TEAT 1,229 1,622
Employer’s contribution to retirement 1B 2R IRET B R
scheme 16 24
Payment in lieu and severance payment RiBAE RENE 345 —
4,932 5,867
For the year ended 31st March
BE=A=+—HLEE
Remuneration by band FHER

HK$0 — HK$1,000,000

0787 — 1,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 %7 — 2,000,000 7T — 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T — 3,000,000 % T 2 2
3 3
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2013, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company and their respective associates had the following interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”))
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the securities transactions by Directors:

EERRETRAEBRKG - HBERA
REERZESERAR

RZE—=F=A=+—0 EFKARAES
THABURESEEZHBBEATRARARE
B EE(TRREARPEKRA(ESRBAE
{1 1D B XV ER) Z B fn - ABRERR 1D I B 7
A TIE AREEF LS EHIE 352 6 F A
FEzERMASREAIZER EMHRRIZE546
KEESTHRERETETESFRHZMETA
MERRNRREZ T2 ERmRAR

Long positions in the shares of the Company REAQATRGD ZHE
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name of Director Capacity shares held shareholdings
EEnE 13 FEEEREE BRZBHAESL
Mr. Ding Yi (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 402,445,296 29.90%

Tz (Mt 1) E3ta NI e
Note:
1. Mr. Ding is beneficially interested in these shares through his wholly-

owned company Celestial Wealth Investments Limited. These shares
were transferred to and held by Mr. Ding directly as beneficial owner
on 3rd May 2013. These shares are the same shares referred to in note
1 under section “Interests or Short Positions of Other Persons”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2013, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the securities of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by

Directors.

Save for the above, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age
had any interests in, or had been granted or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for any securities of the Company or any of its associated

corporations during the year.

Bt -

1. ThREBBEEERHE 2 1A Celestial Wealth
Investments Limited BEm A Z SR G #ER o %5
BRORZ—=FRA=ZHERT T EERARKE
REXREAANEERA - ZERMHAEMALZ
ROk | — &I a1 PRt 2 iBRAR D -

B EXFEBREN RZE—=F=A=+—

H - REESF RS G E 352148 E mEF

Z2ECMALH - XREAIER EmRANE

54616 EFE5.67TIREM EMARIESTETES

RS ZREMRRT R PTEHOEE - R

EREFERARAGERITHABNBES G 20

BALIRA QA EBBEE(EERESR LY

HHEMEXVE) 2 EFFEREMNERIORE -

B EXAREN RAFEARBEEETRARF
ERITBABRBEZRBIARMIBELFL
A AR B S A ARAEE 5 2 s
HERFITERE AR R SHE AT RE AR
& 75 Z AL AT HER o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgHREE

INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
PERSONS

As at 31st March 2013, so far as is known to the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests
were disclosed above) had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Ht AL 2BHmIAXR

w=

Z—=F=A=+—H HREFREARAK

BITHABMA  NIAL(ER EXERE#ES
ZEERARAHZERDITRABRINRARA K
MREER NS - HERIARBESFRARGK
1% 336 T IAFE 2 BRMAZERIAR

Long positions in the shares of the Company REQATRG ZFR
Substantial shareholder of the Company ARATEERE
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name Capacity shares held shareholdings
=g g4 FRFEEREE FRZEBHNEIHL
Celestial Wealth Investments Limited Beneficial owner 402,445,296 29.90%
(Note 1) (ffat 1) BmBEAA
Other shareholders of the Company P-4 % Y1) )3
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name Capacity shares held shareholdings
=g &1 FEFEERHEE BSRZBAEIL
C.L Davids Fond og Samling Beneficial owner 106,178,010 7.89%
BmBEAA
United Overseas Bank Limited Beneficial owner 69,457,701 5.16%
ARERITER DA EREBA
Note: /‘(/TET'L .
1. Mr. Ding is beneficially interested in these shares through his wholly- ThHBEBESEHEAS 2 2D 7 Celestial Wealth

owned company Celestial Wealth Investments Limited. These shares
were transferred to and held by Mr. Ding directly as beneficial owner
on 3rd May 2013. These shares are the same shares referred to in note
1 under section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ3 %R RAR AT

Investments Limited B R A ZF RO © %
ERMR-_E—=—FHA-AERT T LERHE
ERERBEAANEERA - ZERMAERE LK
BITBABRIRG - BRI RE#EE 2w R%
& 1— &K 1 At 2 AR AR o



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
PERSONS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company were not aware of any person (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company the interests of which
were disclosed above) who has an interest or short position in the
securities of the Company that were required to be entered in the
register of the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at
31st March 2013.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10th June 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”). The
Board may at its discretion offer share options to any employee,
agent, consultant or representative, including any executive or non-
executive Director, of any member of the Group or any other person
who satisfies the selection criteria as set out in the 2002 Scheme.
The principal purpose was to provide incentives to participants
to contribute to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit/
retain high caliber employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The 2002 Scheme, having a life of ten years
commencing on the adoption date, expired on 10th June 2012. No
share options have been granted by the Company pursuant to the

2002 Scheme as at the expiration date.

On 31st October 2006, the Company approved a share option
scheme (the “Best Creation Scheme”) adopted by Best Creation
Investments Limited (“Best Creation”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, allowing its board of directors to grant options to
subscribe for shares in Best Creation to the selected participants
under such scheme as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Best Creation group. The Best Creation Scheme has a life of ten
years commencing on the adoption date of 31st October 2006. As
at 31st March 2013, no share options have been granted pursuant

to the Best Creation Scheme.

Htt AL 2 BBmSA R (#

B%tXﬁﬁ&sﬁ%ﬁ\\’ N Z BT —

REERARRRGTBRABMRM - HEE
TﬂAi(EF*J:XT&E%Z%%WK ﬁﬁ*%ﬂﬂl
ANEBRINRARREZPHEA AT AREE
&Eﬁ%’iﬂﬂﬁﬂ%3361%%%1?%2%‘55%??2%@
HFORA e

BRETE

RIBEZFRATHE  ARRBRRLERA —
HEBETEI([2002F58)) - EEEAEIE
AASEEAKE AR ZEMESR - 2 - B
SRR (BREARITHIFNTES) SJUEATE
2002 FAHEIFTEEEREZ H A TR TR
# TEEEABM2EENAKSEERERE
HEAEERLABE BB EFEERBAEK
SEEEEZANEIR - 200246 5T & m M A
B R/BTE  WERZZE——F-ATHE
e REER - AR ABER IR 2002 F 5 81
AR AR A -

RZZEERFTA=+—RH ARrEER
‘Ef{/E /2 7] Best Creation Investments Limited
([Best Creationl) £ 4 2 & i # &t £ ([ Best
Creationzt#l]) - BMEAEEGAIIRBEZAE AL
Phigt 2 M E AR Best Creation &1 A9 E
fe#E - {E R 5% Best Creation EEFT{EE BL
28 Esk48E - Best Creationzt & R4 H £
—ETAFTAZ+—BEFAHTF RZFT
—=F=HA=+—H8 " #H&EE#EBest Creation
FTEIR T R AR -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgHREE

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of

the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2013, none of the Directors or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates
has engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with

the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st March 2013, the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 86.6% of the Group’s total
purchases and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 72.6% of the Group’s total purchases. The aggregate
amount of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers

represented less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s

five largest customers and suppliers noted above.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2REEIZRERAA
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HE-Z—=-F=-A=+—HLFE £A£EA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year and prior to the Capital Reorganisation (as defined
in the circular of the Company dated 18th August 2012), the
Company repurchased a total of 1,400,000 ordinary shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange. These shares together with
5,170,000 ordinary shares repurchased by the Company in March
2012 were cancelled by the Company on 30th April 2012. Details of
the repurchases were set out as follows:

BA - EEREEAQAT 2 LTRSS

FARRRAEEA(EERARAANARA-T
—Z—FN\ATNBZEH)FIARR BT
B4 £ 1,400,000 IR AR B E @A o 52 F M5 &
AARBIRZE—_F =AM 25,170,000 &
ERBRCEARRNR-ZE——FNA=+HF
o BEZFFIEEHIMT

Number of Price per share*
shares srRE®R" Aggregate
Month of repurchase repurchased” Highest Lowest price paid*
e A5 EEERGEE" &S B ST EEE
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(&) &) (&)
April 2012
—E——_F1A 1,400,000 0.039 0.038 53,700
* Excluding transaction cost * TEIFRE B

i The figures represented above have not been adjusted for the Capital

Reorganisation effective on 17th September 2012.

The repurchases were effected by the Directors pursuant to the
mandate from shareholders, with a view to benefits shareholders as
a whole in enhancing the net assets and earnings per share of the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities for year ended 31st March 2013 and up

to the date of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on publicly available information, the Company maintains
a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued ordinary

shares as at the date of this annual report.

LB FRKEHFEARBR = FE—=FAA

1 B4 2 RAEH -
EEREBREELET LMBE - BUERAA
AZEEFERERAT  REEERSRE

o

Bl

BEXHBEEEN RBEE-_Z-=F=H
=t -BUEFERBEARAREAY  AarE
EAMBARBERA - EHEEARRFER
LTS e

EHANBERE

RBARATERGER - RABRAFRB BER
RARZFHBEBBD ETERIK25% °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgHREE

INFORMATION OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

The compliance officer of the Company is Mr. Ding Yi. Mr. Ding is
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company. Biographical
details of Mr. Ding is set out on page 15 of this annual report.

During the year, the company secretary of the Company is Ms. Lam
Yee Fan. She has over 15 years of company secretarial experience
at listed companies in Hong Kong. She is an associate member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Lam resigned as
company secretary of the Company with effect from 31st May 2013
and Mr. Law Wai Fai has taken up her role with effect from 1st June
2013. The biographical details of Mr. Law are set out in section of
“Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” on page 20.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 22 to 37 of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting
period are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2013 have
been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

Ding Yi
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 19th June 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BURBEARE

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

z K

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of North Asia
Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 184, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31st March 2013, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

B DERBEIZERERAARE
(REFZEZ M FREE])

A EAT (LA T TR P ]) B AP H R 5 51
Z184EMILHRIEIERBR AR (TERA ) X
HWBAR(SEIESE])MEEHH®E « It
GANBHREBIEN _E—=6=F=1+—8&
GRAERARMBEHRAREAEEZB IEFENGRE
Bak  GEEEWRER KA ERZBRMNG
AHRETER  UREZSHERMERHE AN
EER

EERAEMBRRARENEE

BERREFAAEREEEGTMASRMNE
B IS R MR B EECR ARG HKER
ERALEBEMA I BEAMBRRLAR
EXETARMSAMBHRRAFTOAIMEE -
VABE B A 7E R ERRF 38R AR T B B B K R AR
R o

BB AR EAE

BANEEERERMINBZEEAMBHRKRIE
HER » WIRRAFE 1981 FCRBE)E 90 &
ERZEBERR®RE - Rt ZIMAREREEMLE
B e RAITERARENARAERNEMALE
ERAREMEL -

BRPIERETE SRS RMAOFTEET LR
EITEZ - BB EREMETERRE - I
BREIRNTER  EMERSIERTERAMER
REBTEFEEAEXRERRAL -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYZBERS

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31st March 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

19th June 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31st March 2013 BEZE —ZE—=F=A=+—HIFE

2012
o s
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Htat FET FET
(Restated)
(#=71)
Revenue ILPN ) 854,323 1,035,410
Cost of sales SHEKA (642,162) (812,715)
Gross profit EFI 212,161 222,695
Other income and gains, net H A RS - SRR 6 5,256 2,927
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (155,327) (175,196)
General and administrative expenses  —#& & 1T H & (46,575) (243,835)
Impairment of investments in joint NEEREZIRERE
ventures 17 (45,273) —
Operating loss K e (29,758) (193,409)
Finance income EUp LN 9 3,718 8,528
Finance costs MisE R 9 (5,392) (1,137)
Share of profits and losses of joint EihAERERN R EE
ventures 2,052 (31,238)
Loss before income tax KRS AT B 18 7 (29,380) (217,256)
Income tax expense B sz 10 (4,111) (23,805)
Loss for the year FAEE 11 (33,491) (241,061)
(Restated)
(#E:%)
Loss per share attributable to ordinary ZN/2 &) 38 A% A% 52 FE 1l
shareholders of the Company FAREE 13
Basic and diluted BEAR RS
— For loss for the year (HK cents) — FREEBCEN) (2.49) (17.80)

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are

disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

FRAEMNREZBREZFERMBEHRRME12

B -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEEHEWE R

Year ended 31st March 2013 BEZE —ZE—=F=A=+—HIFE

2012
—EF——fF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat FET FET
(Restated)
(#&=7)
Loss for the year FAEE (33,491) (241,061)
Other comprehensive income/(loss):  Ef2mEWz(EE) :
Available-for-sale financial assets: AT ESREE :
Changes in fair value NREEE) 18 — (443)
Reclassification adjustments HEME T ALREER
for gains included in the RZWEHIEH B D8
consolidated income statement I
as a result of the disposal — (700)
Currency translation differences of BINEIS 2 B E =58
foreign operations 313 301
Share of other comprehensive EhEErEZEM
income of joint ventures EEEE 768 7,228
Other comprehensive income for the  FREM U
year, net of income tax of nil FREFSHZRIFE 1,081 6,386
Total comprehensive loss for the year A& EEE5E (32,410) (234,675)

52 NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B ISR &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
» »
—E-CF — =
=A=+—~8” mA—AH
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE FAET FHET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (&&E7))
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y~ BB R 14 8,617 10,649 58,274
Intangible assets EEE 16 373,692 373,692 377,269
Investments in joint ventures REELEZKRE 17 137,684 180,137 204,147
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 18 — — 2,109
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIREE 29 — 1,536 24,765
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 19 7,276 7,263 5,761
527,269 573,277 672,325
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 20 2,772 2,831 9,788
Derivative financial instruments MTEEMITE 21 — — 34
Trade and other receivables B S REMRIER
H {th FE R IE 22 83,713 151,125 132,608
Amount due from a joint venture EURA S FEFIB 36(c) — 305 2,875
Pledged bank deposits EHEMIRITER 23 — — 293
Cash and cash equivalents ReE KBS
%(EBH 23 556,251 884,053 951,890
642,736 1,038,314 1,097,488
Total assets BEME 1,170,005 1,611,591 1,769,813
EQUITY Es
Equity attributable to shareholders 72 5 REFEGER
of the Company
Share capital & 7R 24 13,459 134,660 135,968
Reserves e 25 960,188 1,140,651 1,378,675
Total equity R 973,647 1,275,311 1,514,643
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B ISR &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
i n »n
=== —T——F —E——%F
=A=+—H =A=+—H” mA—H
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FHET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&=51)) (&E7)
LIABILITIES af&
Current liabilities REBAE
Borrowings BE 26 16,504 61,871 29,184
Trade and other payables B I RENRIER
H b FERT I8 27 153,263 229,143 222,100
Income tax liabilities EIECT = 2,286 324 76
Provisions Bl 28 10,500 17,264 —
182,553 308,602 251,360
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Borrowings BE 26 — — 6
Deferred tax liabilities RETRIBAE 29 417 — —
Other non-current liabilities HEM3EmsasE 30 13,388 27,678 3,804
13,805 27,678 3,810
Total liabilities BEHAH 196,358 336,280 255,170
Total equity and liabilities RENEERE 1,170,005 1,611,591 1,769,813
Net current assets REBEETHE 460,183 729,712 846,128
Total assets less current liabilities ZBE&FERREBER 987,452 1,302,989 1,518,453

Approved by the Board of Directors on 19th June 2013:

Ding Yi T
Chairman and Executive Director

FERATEFE

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF

Joseph Chan Nap Kee R 3Z &

Non-Executive Director

HHTEFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31st March 2013 BEZE —ZE—=F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to

shareholders of the Company

A ERRERS
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves Sub-total interests Total
B & N FRERIMER Fok ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(note 25)
(st 25)
Balances at 1st April 2011 R-_E——F
MA—H &%
As previously reported SR AT 2 3R 135,968 1,378,675 1,514,643 4,416 1,519,059
Effects of early adoption of RFPRNE B
HKFRSs (note 2.1) HER B
(Ktetz.1) — — — (4,416) (4,416)
As restated &= 135,968 1,378,675 1,514,643 — 1,514,643
Comprehensive income 2 HERE
Loss for the year FRNEE — (241,061) (241,061) — (241,061)
Other comprehensive income/ At 2E Wwm,~
(loss) (E18)
Available-for-sale financial assets: At HE SR EE ¢
Changes in fair value NREES) — (443) (443) — (443)
Reclassification adjustments I EmEETA
for gains included in the FEEmRL
consolidated income W fEH EXT o 1R
statement as a result of the FHE
disposal — (700) (700) (700)
Currency translation differences of BN ETE > ik E
foreign operations 5] — 301 301 — 301
Share of other comprehensive EhEEREZ
income of joint ventures Hibh 2w — 7,228 7,228 — 7,228
Total other comprehensive income — Efth 2 H Iz 4258 — 6,386 6,386 — 6,386
Total comprehensive loss for FALEEEARE
the year — (234,675)  (234,675) — (234,675)
Share repurchase (note 25(c)) FERIIR 1D (A7t 25(c)) — (4,428) (4,428) — (4,428)
Cancellation of shares FEHE B E RS
repurchased (note 25(c)) (K15t 25(c)) (1,308) 1,079 (229) (229)
Balances at 31st March 2012 R-_ZE——
—A=+—HBz&#% 134,660 1,140,651 1,275,311 — 1,275,311
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mREEmSBR

Year ended 31st March 2013 BEZE —ZE—=F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to

shareholders of the Company

KA T RREM
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves Sub-total interests
B i Nt FEHIMER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
(note 25)
(hit2s)
Balances at 1st April 2012 R_ZT—=—F
MA—HZ#&#%
As previously reported ST ATET 2 3R 134,660 1,140,651 1,275,311 5,207 1,280,518
Effects of early adoption of RERME B
HKFRSs (note 2.1) HEAZE
(KtaE2.1) — — - (5,207) (5,207)
As restated KET| 134,660 1,140,651 1,275,311 — 1,275,311
Comprehensive income HE K=
Loss for the year FREE — (33,491) (33,491) — (33,491)
Other comprehensive income Hh 2 EHas
Currency translation differences BN ER 2
of foreign operations BB HmEER - 313 313 - 313
Share of other comprehensive EhaEEL
income of joint ventures Hith 2 mEias — 768 768 — 768
Total other comprehensive HEtemKasResE
income — 1,081 1,081 — 1,081
Total comprehensive loss FRE2MEEELE
for the year — (32,410) (32,410) - (32,410)
Share repurchase (note 25(c)) BRI (A3t 25(c)) - (54) (54) - (54)
Cancellation of shares BB ERG
repurchased (note 25(c)) (Hat 25(c)) (66) 54 (12) - (12)
Capital reduction (note 24(a)) AR A B (HTaF 24(a)) (121,135) 121,135 — - —
Special dividend (note 12) BRI B (A 12) - (269,188) (269,188) - (269,188)
Balances at 31st March 2013 RZZE—=%F
—A=+—Bz#&% 13,459 960,188 973,647 — 973,647

56 NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEETRER

Year ended 31st March 2013 BEZE —ZE—=F=A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—EB—=F —EF—_F
Note HK$°000 HK$ 000
Htat FET FET
(Restated)
(#=71)
Cash flows from operating REEBCRERE
activities
Net cash flows used in operations CEEBERAZRESRE
et 31 (13,912) (95,623)
Interest paid ERFE (1,988) (1,137)
Mainland China enterprise income BT B A (e FE PR EEL
tax paid (197) (212)
Overseas income tax paid EHEINTER — (79)
Net cash flows used in operating KEEBERZRERE
activities FEE (16,097) (97,051)
Cash flows from investing activities REZFEzHEHRE
Additions of property, plant and NEVE - BEREE
equipment (2,727) (12,803)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  HE LR E
plant and equipment FRiS30IA 1,718 =
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHHESREE
available-for-sale financial assets FriS kI8 — 1,823
Interest received [SAL &SN 3,718 5,320
Dividend from a joint venture REAGELEZRE — 2,400
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BHEMRITERZ B — 293
Net cash flows from/(used in) WEEBFELY,/ (ER)2
investing activities WETREFE 2,709 (2,967)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEFEHEHRE
Share repurchase AEl) (54) (4,428)
Special dividend paid =ERESHE (269,188) —
New bank loans FIBIRITE K 170,444 219,641
Repayment of bank loans and EERTERRBERL
capital elements of finance BARID
leases (215,811) (186,135)
Net cash flows from/(used in) mEEBATEL, (ER)Z
financing activities REMEFE (314,609) 29,078
Decrease in cash and cash ReRELEEEAZED
equivalents (327,997) (70,940)
Cash and cash equivalents at FPzREeRELEEER
beginning of year 884,053 951,044
Effect of foreign exchange rate NEERBE 2 HETE
changes, net 195 3,949
Cash and cash equivalents at end FR2BSRELEHEER
of year 556,251 884,053
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31st March 2013 BEZE —ZE—=F=A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—EB—=F e
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Htat FET FEr
(Restated)
(#&=7)
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRESEEEAEBRIW
cash equivalents
Cash at banks, other time deposits RITHE - HMERER
and cash on hand LFERS 23 232,486 314,301
Non-pledged time deposits with REGRRETZEHAR
original maturity of three months = @A AT 2 EIK I
or less when acquired EHFER 323,765 569,752
Cash and cash equivalents as RA BN KE 2
stated in the consolidated ReRkReEAEEE
statement of financial position 556,251 884,053

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
5 35 AR 0 3%

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

As at As at
31st March 31st March
2013 2012
R-B—=% RZT—=F
S == =PF SR fE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FHET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries A EINCIPA 16 652,234 656,069
652,234 656,069
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables E 5 FEWRIE e H A fE Uk
IE 22 57 47
Amount due from a subsidiary I ENGIE ] 36(b) 1,120 590
Amount due from a joint venture EUE ¥ FRIE 36(c) — 305
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEER 23 396,631 736,106
397,808 737,048
Total assets EELE 1,050,042 1,393,117
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to shareholders 722 B RRFE(GHEE
of the Company
Share capital & 7N 24 13,459 134,660
Reserves & 25 946,021 1,136,190
Total equity DB 959,480 1,270,850
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables E 5 I FRIE K H A FE A
IE 27 1,305 32,956
Amount due to a subsidiary FEIHE A RI5RIE 36(b) 89,257 89,311
90,562 122,267
Total liabilities BEHEH 90,562 122,267
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAE 1,050,042 1,393,117
Net current assets RBEEFE 307,246 614,781
Total assets less current liabilities EEAFERAIARS 959,480 1,270,850
Approved by the Board of Directors on 19th June 2013: RZE—=FATNBEEFSHE :
Ding Yi T Joseph Chan Nap Kee [ &
Chairman and Executive Director Non-Executive Director
FTEFERNTEE FERTTESE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and its joint ventures

are principally engaged in the following businesses during the

year:

o hi-tech distribution and services: trading of surface
mount technology (“SMT”) assembly equipment,
machinery and spare parts and the provision of related

installation, training, repair and maintenance services

for SMT assembly equipment;

° branded food: developing and operating Burger King

restaurants in Hong Kong;

o fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products: refining
and sale of fish oil, processing and sale of fishmeal,
manufacturing and sale of aquatic feed products,

aquaculture and processing and sale of aquatic

products (conducted through joint ventures); and

. investment holding.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

and of its principal place of business is Suite 1318, 13th Floor,

Two Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong.

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on The Growth

Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

except when otherwise indicated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by

the Company’s board of directors on 19th June 2013.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED dtz5 SRER 1= ARG R A E]

—REH
It RAEERER QB (TARF L) REMH
BLrl(aBIAKE ) REGEREFA
TENEATERS

e BRRERIHERRYE: REKE
R ([SMTDARR K HERE
BUHES  ARREHESMTAERE
ZHBZE Bl #ERFRER
7&

e BmEEBEmI REBERLKE
Burger King &2 :

e AR RHRKEEMR: RIABR
RIHE  BMMIREE - KEH
MEMRERHFEE KEERE K
EMTRHEECEBA EREET):
)53

s RBEERK-

RARRBEAREE -NN—FRAER
BREIMKNIZERRER LA - B
+ i 9% = B 2 4k & Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda - i H = 2 & ¥t B 2 ik &
BB EEBSH AL ESL _FE 13181318

=
z=
z°

ARBZEBBEREEMERSMBERRA
A ([ B2 1) RIS AR £

BRRERAN WEMBRRUNETE
5 R BEDHEERET TR -

hEVBRREN_TE—=F A+ 1A
RARAEFTSHETIE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation

of these financial statements are set out below. These policies

have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for derivative financial instruments, which have been

measured at fair value.
Early adoption of HKFRSs

The following five new or revised standards are
mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1st January 2013 and should be applied in
accordance with respective transition requirements.
Early application is permitted so long as all of the five
new or revised standards are applied early. The Group
has early adopted these five new or revised standards
on 1st April 2012.

2.

EESTERBMER)

BN EVBHREARAZ T ESHABRS

RN BB HAIN

WEBREMZ

IZFBEENERER -

2.1

HEMBHRDRETEGHMD
e((ZEEMAS NEMZE
BHBRELEN(TEEH B REE
Al (BRAEEEMBEREER
FREHEN(ERGHEND R
28 BELRETRARBER
ARGl 2 RBREMMRE - AHH
BRDIRBELRAEN RE -
TEERMTRERARERE -

RBERRNE B HIHREER

T RBEHAITRGETEINR_-F
—=F A BHZERABZIFE
HEARHEER  YERREBESBEZ
BEMLRTRER - LR A FFIRFE
R - MEPTA TR FT AT AR ERT R
ARERFER AEEER_-F
——FHA—-BRERAZOIAN
RIS RTZER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

Early adoption of HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27
that addresses the accounting for consolidated
financial statements. It establishes a single control
model that applies to all entities. It requires
management to exercise significant judgement
to determine which entities are controlled, and
therefore are required to be consolidated by a

parent.

The standard introduces a new definition on
control under which control of investee requires
an investor to possess all the following three
elements: (1) the power over the investee; (2)
the exposure or rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (3) the ability
to use its power over the investee to affect the

amount of the investor’s returns.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 201

2.

—F-=f=A=t+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

Early adoption of HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

(c)

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures and Hong Kong (SIC) (“HK(SIC)”) — Int
13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. HKFRS 11 addresses
only two forms of joint arrangements (joint
operations and joint ventures) where there is joint
control. In determining the type of arrangements,
HKFRS 11 requires parties to the arrangement to
assess: (1) the legal form of the separate vehicle;
(2) the terms of the contractual arrangement;
and (3) other facts and circumstances that give
them rights to the assets and obligations for the
liabilities or rights to the net assets of the vehicle.
A joint arrangement that meets the definition of
a joint venture must be accounted for using the
equity method. For a joint operation, an entity
revenues and

recognises its assets, liabilities,

expenses relating to its relative shares thereof.

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 establishes the disclosure objectives
for an entity to disclose information concerning its
interest in a subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an
associate or an unconsolidated structured entity.
It also requires an entity to disclose the significant
judgements and assumptions it has made in
determining the nature of its interest in another
entity or arrangement, also in determining the type

of joint arrangement in which it has an interest.

2.

EESTERBMER)
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RAEE(E)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —ZE—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
Early adoption of HKFRSs (continued)

(d) HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

Revisions are made resulting from the issuance of
HKFRS 10 and consolidated financial statements
are now addressed by HKFRS 10. Therefore,
HKAS 27 is revised to only address separate
financial statements, including how to prepare
separate financial statements of an investor and
what disclosures should be made in the separate

financial statements.

(e) HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Revisions are made resulting from the issuance
of HKFRS 11. An entity applies HKFRS 11 to
determine the type of a joint arrangement in which
it is involved. Once it has determined that it has
an interest in a joint venture, the entity recognises
an investment and accounts for it using the equity
method.

Impacts of early adopting new accounting standards

The adoption of HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 (2011) has no
material impact on the accounting policies of the Group
and has no material financial impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Summarised below are the significant assumptions and
judgements adopted by the Company in determining
the nature of its interest in another entity or arrangement
and the type of joint arrangement in which it has an
interest:

Subsidiaries

The Company directly or indirectly controls the financial
and operating policies of its subsidiaries so as to
obtain benefits from their activities. Therefore, the
Company controls the subsidiaries for the purpose of
consolidation.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED dtz5 SRER 1= ARG R A E]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

Impacts of early adopting new accounting standards

(continued)
Joint arrangements

Certain of the Group’s activities are conducted through

joint arrangements.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement. All jointly-
controlled entities (“JCEs”) were separate legal entities
that control their own assets, earn their own income and
incur their own expenses and liabilities. The Group’s
rights as a shareholder of these entities are limited to
dividends or distributions of the net assets of JCEs,
rather than having direct rights to any operating assets,
liabilities or production output. Accordingly, the Group
has evaluated its investments in JCEs as investments in

joint ventures under HKFRS 11.

Prior to the year ended 31st March 2013, the Group’s
investments in JCEs were included in the consolidated
financial statements in proportion to the Group’s
interests in their assets, liabilities, income and
expenses since the date of acquisition, incorporation
or registration of JCEs in accordance with HKAS
31. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 11, the Company
changed the accounting for its investments in JCEs from
proportionate consolidation to the equity accounting
method from the date of acquisition, incorporation
or registration of JCEs. The comparative amount has
been restated with the investments in JCEs being
equity accounted for since the date of acquisition,

incorporation or registration of JCEs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Impacts of early adopting new accounting standards

2.

EZESTERBMEE)

2.1

REEE(E)
BERAHTEERZHE(E)

(continued)

The effects of the above chan

below:

ges are summarised

Consolidated statement of financial position:

Lt

=)
o8]

BEH 2 YEHAMT :

FEAREK -

As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
—E2—= —E——fF —E——F
=A=+—H =A=+—8” MmA—A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET
Increase/(decrease) #hn,/ G )
Assets: BE

Property, plant and equipment 1% - BE K& (86,307) (108,948) (90,090)
Investment properties HEME (2,029) (2,597) (2,172)

Leasehold land under operating &KEHEBE N2 HE
leases and land use rights i Ko £ Hb {5 R A (22,837) (17,994) (17,721)
Intangible assets mREE — (16,630) (17,677)
Investments in joint ventures REEREZRE 137,684 180,137 204,147
Deferred tax assets BEBIREE (3,314) (10,625) (2,324)
Other non-current assets HIERBEE — (8,133) (5,555)
Inventories wE (203,441) (283,107) (238,350)
Biological assets EYEE (8,334) (9,182) (8,499)
Derivative financial assets THEeHmIA — — 34

Trade and other receivables B 5 W FRIE R

Hfh e U (60,260) (50,465) (69,329)
Amount due from a joint venture FEULA & 1> 2 KI8 — 305 2,875
Pledged bank deposits BHEIRITIER (38,357) (85,509) (96,123)
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeEEER (32,342) (25,361) (31,659)
(319,537) (433,109) (372,443)

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED

JbEE R IRB R A E



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Impacts of early adopting new accounting standards

2. EESTHEBE®R)

21 REEEE)
R SRR R (E)

(continued)
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
—E—=F —T——F —T——%F
=A=+—H =A=+—8” mA—A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT FET
Increase/(decrease) #hn,/ G )
Liabilities: a8fE:
Borrowings & (203,055) (276,839) (217,013)
Trade and other payables B S RMNFIER
H b T3R8 (103,470) (147,017) (143,213)
Derivative financial instruments #7744/ T & 177) (636) (1,089)
Income tax liabilities FREEaE (6,253) (801) (4,501)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE — (676) (545)
Deferred income IEFEWA (2,033) (1,933) (1,666)
(314,988) (427,902) (368,027)
Equity: M
Non-controlling interests FEAE Il 1 M 2 (4,549) (5,207) (4,416)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1t35 SREZIZIRE R A A

Basis of preparation (continued)

Impacts of early adopting new accounting standards

(continued)

Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st

EZESTERBMEE)

2.1

RREE(E)
BERAMT S BRI & ()

HE=RA=1T—HILFEZHEEK

March: AR
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Decrease) in revenue WA Z CRA) (597,664) (744,236)
Decrease in cost of sales HER A Z D 511,758 721,322
(Decrease) in other income HMUA Rz 5582
and gains, net CR) (3,154) (6,572)
Decrease in selling and distribution  $5& &5 #5%E FH 2w
expenses 16,012 15,770
Decrease in general and —MRRITRERZ RS
administrative expenses 88,830 39,409
(Increase) in impairment of REBBEITERE 2 (1E
investments in joint ventures hn) (45,273) —
(Decrease) in finance income IS A 2 CRid) (2,115) (6,805)
Decrease in finance costs MIEER 2B 16,148 18,465
Decrease/(increase) in income tax Fris#i i zmd
expense (3hn) 14,081 (6,446)
Increase/(decrease) in share of & ERERMN R
profits and losses of Bz m/
joint ventures CRA) 2,052 (31,238)
Decrease/(increase) in loss for the FREBZRLD
year (3%5m) 675 (331)
Decrease in loss/(profit) attributable  JE¥EHIMRER E(REE OF
to non-controlling interest F) 2w 675 (331)

The retrospective adoption of HKFRS 11 did not have

any effect on the earnings per share for the year ended

31st March 2012 and 2013.

Due to the retrospective application of the new

accounting standards which resulted in the restatement

of items in the statement of financial position, a
statement of financial position as at 1st April 2011, and
the related notes affected have been presented in these

financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

Apart from those standards mentioned in note 2.1 to

these financial statements, the Group has adopted

the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the
current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards —
Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Date for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

HKAS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes —

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of amendments to HKFRS 7, the adoption of the
revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect

on these financial statements.

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require additional
disclosures about financial assets that have been
transferred but not derecognised to enable users
of the Group’s financial statements to understand
the relationship of those assets that have not been
derecognised with their associated liabilities. In
addition, the amendments require disclosure about
the entity’s continuing involvement in derecognised
assets to enable users to evaluate the nature of, and
risks associated with, such involvement. Details of
the transfers of financial assets, including the related
comparative information, are included in note 37 to the

financial statements.

2.

EESTERBMER)

B BEERREEEZED

BRILE BB TS R MRk 2.1 Sl 2 7% %

EQSN REBERANEFE 27

WERBRRAANTRIET B AR

WELER -

EEMBREENE BEMBREENE 15

1RZET BAFNEEHHE

Bl — RESEKK
S EXFEZ EE
A&

EAMBREENE BAMBREEANE7H

TR SETA: #E— 2
BEEZHALE
EARIIRNE 128 BEEHENE 12954
2641 B — EERE - 1
EEZWE2IA

I GE— T HMERRBEMBR
HEANE 7R ZAEFT 2 FEI - KR
RETBTAMBREEUH LSFH
BRRIBEARBZE

ERMBREENFTRZEBFTR
KECRKRERERRULBER 2SR
BEFEBEINEE  SAKEHB
BREMEEWEMZ TR LT
RZEEREBABEEZHE - 5
Oy ZEETERERERFES
HORITEREEZRR  <EM
ERUFNEZS R ZEE RARE
- BETREELHB(EREH
AELBRER) SN M BHREM T
e

2012/13 ANNUAL REPORT F3k

69



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements:

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009 - 2011 Cycle

2012

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards —
Government Loans®

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilties”

Financial Instruments'

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income'

Employee Benefits’

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Ming’

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in
June 2012°

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st January 2013

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st January 2015
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are

expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to
disclose information about rights to set-off and related
arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements). The
disclosures would provide users with information that is
useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements
on an entity’s financial position. The new disclosures
are required for all recognised financial instruments
that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply
to recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1st April 2013.

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the
basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from
HKAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement
of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”). For
these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit
risk must be presented in other comprehensive income
(*OCI”). The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the
fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in
OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under
the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1st April 2015. The Group will
quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases,
when the final standard including all phases is issued.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The
standard does not change the circumstances in which
the Group is required to use fair value, but provides
guidance on how fair value should be applied where
its use is already required or permitted under other
HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13
prospectively from 1st April 2013.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of
items presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified
(or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time
(for example, net gain on hedge of a net investment,
exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and
net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets)
would be presented separately from items which will
never be reclassified (for example, actuarial gains
and losses on defined benefit plans and revaluation
of land and buildings). The amendments will affect
presentation only and have no impact on the financial
position or performance. The Group expects to adopt

the amendments from 1st April 2013.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications
and re-wording. The revised standard introduces
significant changes in the accounting for defined
benefit pension plans including removing the choice
to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and losses.
Other changes include modifications to the timing of
recognition for termination benefits, the classification of
short-term employee benefits and disclosures of defined
benefit plans. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19
(2011) from 1st April 2013.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to setoff” for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group upon

adoption on 1st April 2014.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2013 —ZE—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle issued in June 2012 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1st April 2013. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the
adoption of some of the amendments may result
in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments are expected to have a significant financial
impact on the Group. Those amendments that are
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s

policies are as follows:

(a) HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary
additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information.
Generally, the minimum required comparative

period is the previous period. An entity must

include comparative information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily
provides comparative information beyond the
previous period. The additional comparative
information does not need to contain a complete

set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period must be
presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or
makes reclassifications, and that change has
a material effect on the statement of financial
position. However, the related notes to the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period are not

required to be presented.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

(b) HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
Clarifies that income taxes arising from
distributions to equity holders are accounted
for in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes.
The amendment removes existing income tax
requirements from HKAS 32 and requires entities
to apply the requirements in HKAS 12 to any
income tax arising from distributions to equity

holders.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31st March 2013. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains
and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar

accounting policies that may exist.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if it results

in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.
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31st March 2013 —ZE—=F=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit

or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the
Group has power over the investee such that the
Group is able to direct the relevant activities, has
exposure or rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability
to use its power over the investee to affect the

amount of the investor’s returns.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interests
in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at

cost less any impairment losses.
(b) Joint ventures
Joint arrangements

Certain of the Group’s activities are conducted
through joint arrangements. Joint arrangements
are classified as either a joint operation or joint
venture, based on the rights and obligations
arising from the contractual arrangements

between the parties to the arrangement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(b)

Joint ventures (continued)
Joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement

have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to
bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist. The Group’s share of the post
acquisition results and reserves of joint ventures
is included in the profit or loss and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Where the profit sharing
ratios is different to the Group’s equity interest,
the share of post-acquisition results of the joint
ventures is determined based on the agreed
profit sharing ratio. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investment in joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of joint ventures is
included as part of the Group’s investments in

joint ventures.

When an investment in a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations.
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31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(c)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date
fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-

related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the

acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(c)

Business combinations and goodwill

(continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
either recognised in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent

settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as

a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(c)

Business combinations and goodwill

(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31st March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those

units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed
in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the disposed operation and the

portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 201

—F-=f=A=t+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the

party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(@)

(if)

(iif)

the

has control or joint control over, the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iiif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors who make

strategic decisions.
2.7 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”),
which is the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within “finance income or
costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in profit or loss within
“other income and gains” and “general and

administrative expenses”, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available for
sale are included in the investment revaluation

reserve in equity.
Group'’s entities

The results and financial position of all the entities
within the Group (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities in the statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the end of the reporting

period;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);

and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange difference arising

are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 201

—F-=f=A=t+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over joint
ventures that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the equity holders of the Company are reclassified

to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control) the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange difference is

reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repair and maintenance costs
are charged to profit or loss during the financial period

in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to write off
their costs to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements 3 to 25 years

Furniture and fixtures and office 3to 10 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 3 to 6 years
Plant and machinery and 3 to 10 years

demonstration machinery

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. It is not depreciated
until completion of construction and the asset is
available for use. The cost of completed construction
works is transferred to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in

accordance with the policy as stated above.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount

is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and are

recognised in profit or loss.
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The acquired trademarks and licences, non-compete
agreements, distribution agreements, customer
relationships, technology knowhow, and development
rights and franchises are shown at historical cost.
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the specific software. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value
as at the date of acquisition. The Group’s intangible
assets have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortisation of trademarks, non-compete agreements,
distribution agreements, customer relationships, and
development rights and franchises is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

Customer relationships 3 to 4 years

Distribution agreements 3 years

Development rights and 10 years
franchise fees

Non-compete agreements, 5 to 6 years

included in others
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10

2.12

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
been available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at each

reporting date.
Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury
shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s
own equity instruments. Any difference between the
carrying amount and the consideration is recognised in
equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method or weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, less

accumulated impairment losses.

A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all the amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered as indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or

loss.
Financial assets
2.14.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 =

2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Financial assets (continued)

2.14.1 Classification (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and other receivables” and “cash
and cash equivalents” in the statement of
financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Financial assets (continued)

2.14.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised

cost using the effective interest rate method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified
as available for sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the securities and other
changes in the carrying amount of the securities.
The translation differences on monetary securities
are recognised in profit or loss, while translation
differences on non-monetary securities are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale

are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Financial assets (continued)

2.14.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that
are traded in active markets is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction
for transaction costs. For financial instruments
where there is no active market, the fair value
is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow

analysis; and option pricing models.

2.15 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that

can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan
or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an

observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’'s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment

loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses
the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case of
equity investments classified as available for sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss —
is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss on equity instruments are not reversed
through profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available for sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through profit

or loss.

2.16 Financial liabilities

2.16.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39
are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial

liabilities at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 201

—F-=f=A=t+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Financial liabilities (continued)

2.16.1 Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,

net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, derivative financial instruments

and interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

2.16.2 Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their classification as

follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial

recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the date of initial recognition and

only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. BEESHHEHBESE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 S@EEE)
2.16.2 H#& 8 (&)

2.16 Financial liabilities (continued)

2.16.2 Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit

or loss.

2.16.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Financial liabilities (continued)
2.16.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.
2.16.5 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that
are traded in active markets is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction
for transaction costs. For financial instruments
where there is no active market, the fair value
is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow

analysis; and option pricing models.
2.17 Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments do
not qualify for hedge accounting. They are initially
recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or

less, and bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits which are not
restricted as to use. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of

financial position.
Share capital

Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares

are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Trade and other
payables are repayable upon the receipt of invoices and

credit terms granted by suppliers are up to 90 days.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the

facilities to which they relate.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the

reporting period.
Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries where
the Group operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions, where appropriate, on the basis

of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax

liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can

be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes and liabilities relate to income
taxes levies by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is

an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlement to annual leave and long
service leave is recognised when it accrues to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to

the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlement to sick leave and maternity

leave is not recognised until the time of leave.
Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution
plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays contributions to
state/trustee-administered funds on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised

as employment costs when they are due.
Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses. It recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive

obligation.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a

present legal or constructive obligation as a result of

past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources

will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount

has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the

likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement

is determined by considering the class of obligations as

a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood

of an outflow with respect to any one item included in

the same class of obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.
Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised on the following bases:
(a) Sales revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when a group entity has delivered products to
the customer, and the customer has accepted
the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured or when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of

goods have passed to the buyer.

(b) Commission, service and management fee

income

Commission, service and management fee income
is recognised when the services are rendered, by
reference to completion of the specific transaction
assessed on the basis of the actual services
provided as a proportion of the total services to

be provided.
(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion

basis using the effective interest rate method.

Advance payments received from customers prior to
the delivery of goods and the provision of services is

recorded as receipts in advance.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —ZE—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on the straight-

line basis over the period of the leases.
Operating leases (as the lessor)

Assets leased out under operating leases are included
in property, plant and equipment in the statement of
financial position. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with
similar property, plant and equipment. Rental income
is recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease

term.
Finance leases (as the lessor)

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the
present value of the lease payments is recognised as a
receivable. The difference between the gross receivable
and the present value of the receivable is recognised as

unearned finance income.

Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease
using the net investment method, which reflects a

constant periodic rate of return.
Finance leases (as the lessee)

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has acquired substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the leases’
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased properties and the present value of the minimum

lease payments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.29

2.30

2.31

2.32

Finance leases (as the lessee) (continued)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in other short term and other long term payables. The
interest element of the finance costs is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. Leased assets
are depreciated using the straight-line basis over their
expected useful lives to residual values.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All
other borrowing costs are charged to profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. The Group does not
recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at inception,
but performs a liability adequacy test at the end of each
reporting period by comparing its net liability regarding
the financial guarantee with the amount that would be
required if the financial guarantee would result in a
present legal or constructive obligation. If the liability
is less than its present legal or constructive obligation
amount, the entire difference is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividend is approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —ZE—=F=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative

financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the finance
department of the Company under policies approved
by the board of directors. The finance department
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in
close co-operation with the Group’s operating units.
The board of directors provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and non-derivative financial instruments,

and investment of excess liquidity.
(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and other Asia Pacific regions and
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to United States dollars (the
“US dollar”),

(“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises from

Japanese Yen, and Renminbi
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in

foreign operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 201

—F-=f=A=t+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Management has set up a policy to require
entities within the Group to manage
their foreign exchange risk against
their functional currency. To manage
their foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities, entities
within the Group use forward contracts.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations is managed
primarily through borrowings denominated
in the relevant foreign currencies.

The Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the
US dollar at a range of rates between 7.75
and 7.85, the foreign exchange exposure
between the US dollar and the Hong Kong
dollar is therefore limited.

At 31st March 2013,
weakened/strengthened by 20% against the

if Japanese Yen had

Hong Kong dollar with all other variables
held constant, loss for the year would have
been HK$4,130,000 lower/higher (2012:
HK$7,358,000 lower/higher),
result of foreign exchange gains/losses on

mainly as a

translation of Japanese Yen denominated
trade payables and trade receivables.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 201

3.

—F-=f=A=t+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31st March 2013,

Kong dollar with all other variables held

constant,

HK$1,623,000 lower/higher),

result of foreign exchange gains/losses

on translation of RMB denominated trade

receivables and trade payables.

(i) Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity

securities price risk or commodity price risk.

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets except for cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits,
the income and operating cash flows are

substantially independent of changes in

market interest rates.

The cash and cash equivalents and pledged
bank deposits are interest-bearing at

floating rate and expose the Group to the

cash flow interest rate risk.

The interest rate risk from financial liabilities
arises from borrowings. Borrowings that are

subject to variable rates expose the Group

to cash flow interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(iii) ~ Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

At 31st March 2013, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, loss for the year would have
been HK$165,000 higher/lower (2012:
HK$619,000 higher/lower (restated)), mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest expense
on floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, trade receivables and
certain other receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate
financial strength and appropriate percentage
of down payment. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

The carrying amount of the receivables included
in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to these financial assets. The
credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances
is considered by the Group to be minimal as
the bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

No credit limits were exceeded during the
reporting period, and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
counterparties. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and
the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit

lines.

Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity

requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve which comprises
undrawn borrowing facilities and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash
flows. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, and to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on
the earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
other bank borrowings is prepared based on the

scheduled repayment dates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

(c)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. UBEREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBEBEERE)
Liquidity risk (continued) (c) HBEZEERE)
N > 3 AN \
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TRARBHARZAOEIMA
FIr AR AR - ¥
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial ijﬁé/ﬂﬁaﬁé’g+/\_£$i§
N . - CRIBERFHEETESRE
liabilities by maturity based on the remaining . o
eriod at the end of the reportin eriod to the CRBRA B i © A2
P _ poriing perioe BB REAANAERES
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed 2
ViM °
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.
On demand Between Between
or less than 1and 2 2and 5
1 year years years Total
RERS
18R 122F 2E5% et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 31st March 2013 R-EB-=£=A=1+-H
Borrowings E= 16,504 — - 16,504
Trade and other payables BHENTIER
Hit AR 153,263 - - 153,263
169,767 - - 169,767
At 31st March 2012 R-B-—£=A=1+-H
(Restated) (RE35)
Borrowings = 61,871 = = 61,871
Trade and other payables BHRNTIER
Hi 7R 229,143 — — 229,143
291,014 — — 291,014
At 1st April 2011 R-Z-——-FNA-AH
(Restated) (&E351)
Borrowings EE 29,184 6 — 29,190
Trade and other payables BHRENFIE R A
ERFIE 222,100 — = 222,100
251,284 6 — 251,290
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. UHERERE®
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEKEER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to REBEEEARNZ BETDARER
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going FEEENBEERBIFELEEEL
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders & DABE IR R B 3 I H M AR B
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an #= o UREREE 2B RNEEBR D
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. BARKA o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the BERRABRERNEE  AEET
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to FARRNBREZRE BREZEXR
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new B BITHROIABRLSEED
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. HEEESNIE -
During the year ended 31st March 2013, the Group’s HE-_Z-—=F=A=+—HILHF
strategy, which was unchanged from last year, was to B AEBEREEF 2R - #5
maintain net cash position. The net cash positions at FHeMR - RZFE—=F=A
31st March 2013, 31st March 2012 and 1st April 2011 =t—H - —FE——F=ZA=+—
were analysed as follows: Ak-—ZE——FMOA—RHZFHS
R
As at As at As at
<A ET( I 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
N T —ZE——F
=A=1+—H =;Ead= MA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(g=&%)) (5&&E%))
Borrowings (note 26) BE(K7+26) 16,504 61,871 29,190
Less: Cash and cash equivalents  J& - W& KIRESEEIAR
and pledged bank deposits LA R B IR R1TIF 3K
(note 23) (Hte#23) 556,251 884,053 952,183
Net cash FHE 539,747 822,182 922,993
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BBEREEE
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AAREMEE
The table below analyses financial instruments carried TERABEEDTRARBEIEREZ
at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels ERITA - NRFERZAELT

have been defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . REEENBELEERMSE L
identical assets or liabilities (level 1) ZHRE(REHARE) (FH1—)

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within . EEAER SR ) 3k M # (A
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, BREEHB)FEAGRER —
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that FHRENINZTEREESE
is, derived from prices) (level 2) BEEE (&R =)

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based o FAEER AR T HEE 2
on observable market data (that is, unobservable BEEHEBHEEITAIEHER
inputs) (level 3) ) (B HI=)

As at 31st March 2013 and 31st March 2012, there were RZE—=F=A=+—AKZ=Z

no financial assets measured at fair value. The following ——F=A=+—H #HEsmE

table presents the Group’s financial assets as at ERAAEFE TREARKEER
1st April 2011 that are measured at fair value: R-ZE——FNA—HEQAAER
EZEMEE
At 1st April 2011 (Restated): R-ZT——FWMA—RAKEE)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HHI— FRI= FAI= S

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET FET FET

Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial At ESmEE
assets
— Equity securities — RAEF 2,109 — — 2,109
Financial assets at fair value &2 BE5 BRI 185555
through profit or loss BremEE
— Derivative financial — TESRIA
instruments — 34 — 34
2,109 34 — 2,143
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR BB — BRI = 2 M8 EE
measurements between level 1 and level 2 (2012: Nil). AIARBEFEZER(ZE——F:
') -
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31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end
of the reporting period. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price. These instruments are included
in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise
primarily listed equity investments classified as trading

securities or available for sale.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If
one or more of the significant inputs are not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in

level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial

instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments
o Fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts

determined using forward exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period, with the resulting

value discounted back to present values

o Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, that are used to determine fair values of

the remaining financial instruments

There was no change in level 3 instruments for the years
ended 31st March 2013 and 2012.
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31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom reflect the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1

4.2

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, where it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives; and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual
values. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and residual values and therefore
depreciation expense in the future periods.

Goodwill impairment assessment

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2.4 and note 2.10 to the financial
statements. For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired has been allocated to individual cash-
generating units which are reviewed for impairment
based on forecast operating performance and cash
flows. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit has been determined based on value
in use calculations. Cash flow projections are prepared
on the basis of reasonable assumptions reflective
of prevailing and future market conditions, and are
discounted appropriately.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.3

4.4

4.5

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
variable selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer demand and competitor actions. Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of each reporting

period.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets with finite
lives are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs to sell is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Estimated recoverability of trade and other
receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
This assessment is based on the credit history of its
customers and other debtors as well as the current
market condition, and requires the use of judgements
and estimates. Management reassesses the provision at
the end of each reporting period.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.6

4.7

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of the provision
for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is

made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
relate to tax losses, depends on management’s
expectation of future taxable profit that will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. The

outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.
Provision

Management estimates the provision for onerous
contracts being the present obligation of the
unavoidable costs less the economic benefits expected
to be received under those non-cancellable operating
lease contracts in connection with the branded food
operation. The expected economic benefits are
estimated based on net discounted cash flows of the
branded food operation while unavoidable costs are
the rental payments that the Group is obligated to make

under the non-cancellable operating lease contracts.

Management conducted an assessment of the
non-cancellable contracts and had a provision of
HK$18,460,000 (2012: HK$38,034,000) for onerous
contracts at 31st March 2013 (note 28).

In estimating the discounted cash flows of the branded
food operation, management has used a discount rate
of 10% (2012: 11%).

4.

B E ¥ fh T R M ()

4.6

4.7

Fr 8%
SR B E BB R O

FriSH - EEEMGHERSRE

FEELERAE - EAFEBB
B BETRHRFAEMSIRZ&
RUEBEEEMITHEED Wit E
EMZREBRBERERRERZ
TETR - ALEZRREEED
It F B MM 2 P S B R AR TR
B o

REEHAEE(TRERIBAERE
BER)RTERERMBIARIEERE
ARARKERTREFNME - BERE
RERATBETR -

e

EREMAFEBRANBERERR
ERMEBZAAHEREEES
WA BN 2R ERGHMEE
HARBEZEANERMLERN
wme BHEEMNSREMERMS
BZBRBELREFREMET M A
R AR RBAEBRE A
RIHEEHEER T 2B EMAA -

ERER A B A N EITAE
YTHR-_FE—=F=A=+—8%E
B A& #) B 1%18,460,0008 L( = &
— — £ : 38,034,000 jt ) (M 7=
28) °

HETRERREBZHBREEERE
B BEEEEHEAB10%(ZZE—=
F o 11%) 2R K -

2012/13 ANNUAL REPORT F3k

115



116

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 201
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5, EXFE -WARSEER
INFORMATION
5.1 Turnover and revenue 51 BEERWKA
Turnover represents sales of goods, revenue from EEBRRLEER EmEE®
branded food operation, commission and other service EBELEZWRA - B REMRE
income. The amounts of each category of revenue WA FRABERRERNERZ &
recognised during the year are as follows: BT -
2012
—E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(#eE=5)
Sales of goods HEEM 674,433 860,287
Revenue from branded food operation B RERBEBELEZWA 120,368 143,006
Commission and other service income {4 M E b ARG U A 59,522 32,117
854,323 1,035,410
5.2 Operating segment information 52 RESEER
For management purpose, the Group, including its BEEMmMS  AEE(EEEAZND

joint ventures, is organised into three major reportable
operating segments — hi-tech distribution and services,
branded food and fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic
products. The hi-tech distribution and services operating
segment derives revenue from the sale of goods. The
branded food operation segment derives revenue
through the operation of quick service restaurants in

Hong Kong under the Burger King brand.

Upon the early adoption of HKFRS 11, the Group’s
accounting for its joint ventures, which operated in
the fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products business,
were changed from proportionate consolidation to
equity accounting method from the date of acquisition,
incorporation or registration of JCEs. As a result, the
operating segment information of the Group has been

restated to reflect this change.
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31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

5

TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5.2

Operating segment information (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax
except that finance income, finance costs as well as
head office and corporate expenses are excluded from

such measurement.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, other non-current assets,
inventories and trade and other receivables. Unallocated
assets comprise deferred tax assets, pledged bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents and corporate and

others.

Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade and other
payables, provisions and other non-current liabilities.
Unallocated liabilities comprise deferred tax liabilities,
income tax liabilities, borrowings and corporate and

others.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,

plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. EX¥E -WARSEER®
INFORMATION (continued)
5.2 Operating segment information (continued) 52 RESEERE)

There are no significant sales between the operating
segments during the year (2012: Nil). The operating

FR - ZEEBENEBESTEH
E(ZE—ZF E) FEZEE

results for the year are as follows: FEEWT
Group rEEH
Year ended 31st March 2013
BE-_E-=E-A=+-HALEE
Fishmeal,
Hi-tech fish oil
distribution Branded and aquatic
and services food products
operation operation operation
ENEERDH 2R AR
REBBES mERMER KEERER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Revenue A
— Sales to external customers ~ — ¥R HE 733,955 120,368 — 854,323
Segment results DEEE 27,639 8,339 2,052 38,030
Impairment of investments in RE&EREZ
joint ventures RERE — — (45,273) (45,273)
27,639 8,339 (43,221) (7,243)
Finance income BITSULA 3,718
Finance costs M5 R (5,392)
Corporate and other unallocated % K H RS E
expenses BH (20,463)
Loss before income tax BRETSHLAIETE (29,380)
Income tax expense FrigRi st (4,111)
Loss for the year FRERE (33,491)
Capital expenditure: BARREY
Segment assets NEEE 1,907 - - 1,907
Corporate and other unallocated (% R EM AN
capital expenditure EAXHX 854
2,761
Depreciation: neE:
Segment assets PEEE 4,284 - - 4,284
Corporate and other unallocated % K H iR 5 E
depreciation neE 235
4,519
Write-off of property, MEWE - BER
plant and equipment (note 14)  RE (Kt 14) 269 - - 269
Reversal of unutilised provision ~ BEIRBABEAEH
for onerous contracts* B
(note 28) (HEt28) - (15,056) — (15,056)
Reversal of unutilised provision ~ BEABRER
for reinstatement costs BH
(note 28) (Hizt28) — (536) — (536)

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—

5

H

TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. EXHF - WARSEERE)
INFORMATION (continued)
5.2 Operating segment information (continued) 52 RKESBERE)
Group (continued) rEH(E)
Year ended 31st March 2012
BE-T—§=A=1+—-HLFE
Fishmeal,
Hi-tech fish oil
distribution Branded and aquatic
and services food products
____operation operation operation Total
BRRERDH \ B BN
RIRT % MIERMES KEERER k]
HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK8'000
FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(& =35) (& =351)
Revenue WA
— Sales to external customers ~ — HINEFHEE 892,404 143,006 — 1,035,410
Segment results before MREREE
amortisation of intangible BRI HH
assets gz 23,461 (121,571) (31,238) (129,348)
Amortisation of intangible assets /& E — (437) = (437)
Segment results VAR CES 23,461 (122,008) (31,238) (129,785)
Finance income BT 8,528
Finance costs Bi5ER (1,137)
Corporate and other unallocated % & E A DB
expenses &M (94,862)
Loss before income tax BRATIS B A1 (217,256)
Income tax expense Frigfi i (23,805)
Loss for the year FHER (241,061)
Capital expenditure: BEARY
Segment assets NEREE 8,268 3,999 — 12,267
Corporate and other unallocated (% R EMADE
capital expenditure AR 536
12,803
Depreciation: e
Segment assets NEEE 8,192 11,115 — 19,307
Corporate and other unallocated % R E AN E
depreciation £ 253
19,560
Amortisation B — 437 — 437
Provision for impairment B S5 RENGIER
of trade and other receivables,  H 1N IERE
net B 58 4,401 — = 4,401
Provision for impairment of Mm% - BERRERE
property, plant and equipment* B &~
(note 14) (Hizt 14) — 40,580 — 40,580
Provision for impairment of ERAERERE
intangible assets* (note 15) 1zt 15) — 2,112 = 2,112
Write-off of intangible assets* HEVEE"
(note 15) (B1at15) — 1,028 — 1,028
Provision for onerous contracts® 518 & A *
(note 28) (W3t 28) - 38,034 — 38,034
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31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

5.

TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

*

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1t35 SREZIZIRE R A A

During the year ended 31st March 2012, the Group had
entered into an agreement to terminate the exclusivity
right to develop franchise business in Hong Kong and
Macau, in light of the continuing operating losses of the
restaurants operating under the franchise agreements
since their openings. Accordingly, the development right
with a then net carrying amount of HK$1,028,000 was
written off. Also, there was an indication that impairment
might exist. Based on the impairment assessment of
the property, plant and equipment and franchise fees of
these restaurants to reflect the Group’s business strategy,
impairment losses of HK$40,580,000 and HK$2,112,000
on the property, plant and equipment and franchise fees,
respectively, were recognised during the year ended
31st March 2012 to their recoverable amounts which were
their values in use. In estimating the values in use of the
property, plant and equipment and franchise fees, a pre-
tax discount rate of 11% was used.

In addition, a provision of HK$38,034,000 for onerous
contracts with respect to the operating leases of these
restaurants was recognised during the year ended
31st March 2012. The provision amount represented the
present value of the future lease payments that the Group
was obligated to make under non-cancellable onerous
operating lease contracts, less economic benefits
expected to be earned on those leases. The estimate
might vary as a result of changes in the utilisation of
the leased premises. The unexpired terms of the leases
ranged from within 1 year to 4 years. Provision has been
made for such onerous contracts based on the estimated
minimum net cost of exiting from the operating lease
contracts.

During the year ended 31st March 2013, the
unutilised provision for onerous contracts amounted to
HK$15,056,000 was released.

al
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. EXE - WARIEER#®)
INFORMATION (continued)
5.2 Operating segment information (continued) 52 RESEER(E)
The segment assets and liabilities at the end of the RERARZOEEENEBENT ¢
reporting period are as follows:
Group rEE
Fishmeal,
Hi-tech fish oil
distribution Branded and aquatic
and services food products
operation operation operation
B 2% Al
Ema#H i RKEEmM
RERH 5 EYLES % “E
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
At 31st March 2013 R-B-=%
ZA=+-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NREE 461,015 11,975 137,684 610,674
Unallocated assets: AOBEE :
Cash and cash equivalents HeRkReEE
HH 556,251
Corporate and others rEREA 3,080

Total assets per the consolidated #FA& BNz H 2

statement of financial position BERE 1,170,005
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities PEEE 139,197 36,406 — 175,603
Unallocated liabilities: APEARE

Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEAE M7

Income tax liabilities FrEHiaE 2,286

Borrowings e 16,504

Corporate and others EREM 1,548
Total liabilities per the SEUMBRRKRPZ

consolidated statement of BfEERE

financial position 196,358

2012/13 ANNUAL REPORT &3k 121



122

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % R MY EE

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

Group
At 31st March 2012 R=B-—=F
SHHESIEH
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE
Unallocated assets: ADEEE :
Deferred tax assets EETIEEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReF
EH
Corporate and others EREM

Total assets per the consolidated #FA&HBEHREKS 2
statement of financial position BERE

LIABILITIES &

Segment liabilities PEEE

Unallocated liabilities: APEARE
Income tax liabilities FEHaE
Borrowings BE
Corporate and others REREAM

Total liabilities per the HRARBRRERFZ
consolidated statement of BfREE

financial position

Hi-tech
distribution
and services
operation
BRHR
Em7 i
KR %5
HK$'000
FET

531,219

180,553

5.

EEE WARIEER @)

52 RKRESEERE)
rEE

Fishmeal,

fish ol

Branded and aquatic
food products
operation operation
=0y i

Am YKEER
R@mEH 5%
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
(Restated)

(&E5)

13,650 180,137

59,213 =

Total

Fak
HK$000
FET
(Restated)
(g&5)

725,006

1,636

884,063

996

1,611,591

239,766

324
61,871

34,319

336,280
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

Geographical information

(a)

Revenue from external customers

The Group’s activities are conducted predominantly
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Revenue by
geographical location is determined on the basis
of the destination of shipment of goods for hi-
tech distribution as well as the location of service

performed by the branded food segment.

The following table provides an analysis of the

Group’s revenue by geographical location:

5.

BMEE - WARPEER®)

RESWEN(E)
HEEH
(a) XKEHIES LA

AEBEEBETNEERTE
MHETT - BB DR D 2
WA TR AE = R EE ma 0 8519
Bz EMM  UREERRD
RBPT IR 2 BR 7% PR AR M T

=

T °

TRE‘RZMEER 2 AEE
WADHT :

For the year ended31st March

BE=ZA=+—-HLFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FEIT

(Restated)

(& E5)

Hong Kong BB 120,368 143,006
Mainland China AR R A 699,500 863,165
Asia — Others o — HAb 34,455 29,239
Total revenue L NL 854,323 1,035,410
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)
Geographical information (continued)
(b)  Non-current assets

The non-current asset information is based on
the location of assets and excludes financial

instruments and deferred tax assets.

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s non-current assets as at the end of the

reporting period by geographical location:

5. EXE WARIEER#@)

52 RKRESEERE)
HEEH(E)
(b) FrRBEE

FERBDEEZEMDIRIBZEE
FEMETE BT EFEemT
ARBEERIREE °

TR BRI RIZ 0 & F
HZ AEBEREEENN

As at As at As at

31st March 31st March 1st April

2013 2012 2011

R=FT——F R=T —F

=A=+—H MA—H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T THET
(Restated) (Restated)

(#&&7) (F&75)

Hong Kong BB 389,045 389,099 433,965
Mainland China Fh B A3 137,899 182,076 210,948
Asia — Others M — HAtb 325 566 538
527,269 571,741 645,451

Information about a major customer

In the current year, revenue of approximately
HK$97,164,000 was derived from sales by the
hi-tech distribution and services operating segment to
a single customer. In the prior year, no single customer
accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

6.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains, net is as

follows:

HW AR W - B8
AREE 2 WA RS FEAITT

2013 2012
—E-=F == iEs

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

(Restated)

(% 5&51)

Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) HNEURES (518 )R8 2,833 (252)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEW% - BEL&EZ

equipment, net Was - JFEE 1,131 —
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale ~ HEAHHESREE Y

financial assets & — 1,153

Write-back of impairment of trade B 5 R IERE

receivables [l — 1,049

Guarantee fee income ERERKA 759 800

Others Hh 533 177

5,256 2,927
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

The Group’s loss before income tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold EEFERA
Net foreign exchange gains P& 5 U a5 58

Depreciation of property, plant and

W BB RRETE

equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets* L& E#EH -
Employment costs & R R AR
Operating lease rental of rented HEMEZIKEHERS
premises
Impairment of trade and other B 5 FEUGRTE K H A FE U
receivables, net* IR EFRE
Provision for impairment of A E R AR

intangible assets”
Write-off of property, plant and

equipment
Write-off of intangible assets* R & EE S
Provision for impairment of M - BE RH&E
property, plant and equipment* B R
Provision/(reversal of provision) BREHNEE
for onerous contracts* (BEEIBE)
Provision/(reversal of provision) BIREREE
for reinstatement costs (BRI

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net

HEWE  BERREZ
B8 () - FE

Gain on disposal of HEAREESREEY
available-for-sale financial assets &
Auditors’ remuneration ZEET S

Notes

Hrat

14
15

19

14
15

14

28

28

BRETBBIAIE R
REEZBRETEHAEBEINR,(GTA)
T35 8 :
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(%5 5&51)
632,049 799,490
(1,729) (236)
4,519 19,560
— 437
101,655 102,470
41,714 44,963
— 4,401
— 2,112
269 —
— 1,028
— 40,580
(15,056) 38,034
(536) 3,011
(1,131) 835
— (1,153)
2,302 2,220

*

The amortisation of intangible assets, impairment of trade
and other receivables, provision for impairment of intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment, provision/(reversal
of provision) for reinstatement costs and provision/(reversal of
provision) for onerous contracts are included in “General and
administrative expenses” in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS

An analysis of employment costs including the emoluments

of the directors and chief executive and the five highest paid

individuals is as follows:

8.

18 A A A

BAKKN(BREEERTRERZHERA
AEREFALZBME) 2T

2012
—F—=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

(Restated)

(1&=5)

Directors’ fees Yok 1,783 2,020
Salaries, wages, allowances and e TE - REIREA

bonuses 95,735 97,723

Termination benefits B AR A 2,245 —

Consultancy fee = 225 912

Retirement benefits — defined RIRAER
contribution scheme — REMHKEE 1,667 1,815
101,655 102,470

(a)

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the Group (the employer) and each of its employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income as defined under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The monthly contribution of each of the employer
and employees is subject to a cap of HK$1,250 per
employee and any further contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the Group contributes to state-operated
retirement plans for its employees in Mainland China.
The employees contribute fixed percentages of their
basic salaries as required by the local authorities
while the Group contributes further amount as required
by the local authorities. The Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond these contributions. The
state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

(a)

AEECRHERERERESE -7
HBYUSXRAERZRGEAES
AREI(TREEAE ) K8 A
—IEAEHRKETE - RIFBES A
2 AEBE(REREREEEEE
HizEBBBWACER R E/E8H
MAB S EED) 2 5% Mt &k
Bt - SuEIREEZEAH
R ERA1,250787T - MERRIMIEK
TIBEkE

RPEBALZ R RRD - RNEE
RETEAMESABRREN 2R
RETEIHR - BEBIRMTTHERTE
ZEXAHEEEBDLHER > MA
SEZZNTHBAREZRIIESR
R - R FHARN - AEERE
XA EAERERS IORIKNREF
ZRE - ZFEXE RN EIA
BREMERKEEXN2EHEAKE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8. EARA®)
(b) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (b) EERTHAZMS
The remuneration of each director and chief executive BE—_Z—=F=A=+—HItF
for the year ended 31st March 2013 is set out below: EREERITHAE 2 FHME5 a0
e s

Employer’s

contribution

Termination  to retirement

Salaries benefits scheme
BRGHEZ
e BREN EEf
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx FEx TErx TEx TEx
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Yu Wang Tak' YN Ao 200 2,518 1,500 13 4,231
Mr. Ding Yi Iz 38 400 - 3 4
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Yu Wang Tak" F VRt 13 - 120 - 133
Mr. Takeshi Kadota"' Takeshi Kadota %t " 213 - 120 - 333
Mr. Jason Matthew Brown™’ Jason Matthew Brown %4 "/ 17 - - - 17
Mr. James Tsiolis James Tsiolis 54 280 - - - 280
Mr. Goran Sture Malm"” Géran Sture Malm 4" 109 - - - 109
Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee'"! BuEgE" 27 - - - 27
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Philip Ma King Huen"” Eskrs" 231 - 260 - 491
Mr. Kenny Tam King Ching"” ERELE" 266 - 225 - 491
Mr. George Forrai"” George Forrai 24" 154 - 20 - 174
Mr. Stephen Luk Kai Ming"” EREA L 27 - - - 27
Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King"” Frgrs" 27 - - - 27
Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse"  2&/%4"Y 27 - - - 27
1,783 2,918 2,245 16 6,962
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8. EARA&®)
(b) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (b) EEBERITHATZME(Z)
(continued)
The remuneration of each director and chief executive HE-_Z——F=ZA=+—HLLF
for the year ended 31st March 2012 is set out below: EREERITHREAR 2 FH M w0
b Employer's
contribution

Consultancy ~ to retirement

Fees Salaries fee scheme Total
RiRGHEIZ
ik ¢ BRE EEHR 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAT TAT TET TET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Géran Sture Malm Goran Sture Malm £ 240 1,212 = 12 1,464
Mr. John Saliling""’ John Saliling 564 " 110 745 418 6 1,279
Non-executive directors FUTEE
Mr. Takeshi Kadota Takeshi Kadota %54 240 — - — 240
Mr. Andrew Yao Cho Fai® ki ss" 110 = = = 10
Mr. Jason Matthew Brown Jason Matthew Brown 74 240 = = = 240
Mr. James Tsiolis James Tsiolis 4 240 — - - 240
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Philip Ma King Huen BRExE 260 — - - 260
Mr. Kenny Tam King Ching EREEE 280 — - - 280
Mr. Yu Wang Tak REEEE 300 — — - 300
2,020 1,957 418 18 4,413
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued)

(b)

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1t35 SREZIZIRE R A A

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(continued)

There was no other arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years ended 31st March 2013 and 2012.

(i)

(ii)

(iil)

@)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

()

Relinquished his executive responsibilities on the board
of directors as chairman and executive director of the
Company and re-designated as a non-executive director
on 2nd February 2013; resigned on 19th February 2013
as a non-executive director.

Appointed on 4th February 2013
Resigned on 19th February 2013
Resigned on 17th December 2012
Retired on 14th September 2012
Appointed on 19th February 2013

Appointed on 30th June 2012 and resigned on
19th February 2013

Pursuant to a consultancy agreement entered into
between the Group and Pharos Partners, a company
owned by Mr. John Saliling, a consultancy fee of
HK$418,000 was paid to Pharos Partners during the
period from 1st April 2011 to 15th September 2011 when
Mr. John Saliling acted as a director of the Company.
On 15th September 2011, Mr. John Saliling retired as an
executive director, only a portion of his emolument during
prior year was included as directors’ emolument above.
Given Mr. John Saliling was considered one of the five
highest paid individuals for the year ended 31st March
2012, his full year’s emoluments including the above
portion has been included in note 8(c) to the financial
statements.

Retired on 15th September 2011

al

8. EARA#E)
(b) EFERTHRARMS(Z

S

—ET—=FR-FT—=_F=A

ST BLEFE BEEEREH
R PFRELRBREETAME -

(0]

(i)

(iil)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vif)

(viil)

(ix)

R-E—=F_A-_AHFARQFZE
ERIFERITES  UAERIFHR
TEE R=ZE—=F-A+thB#
EFFRNITES -

R-T—=F- ANAKEE
R-ZE—=F-"A+OHEE
RZB——F+=-A++AET
RIE—"FNATMARE

%

R-Z—=F_A+NBEZF

A

N

=2

—B-ZFAASHEEEERR
—P-SEZAHARBE

1R 4% A< &£ @ 22 John Saliling 5t 4 #
A Z /A ")Pharos Partners#:] 2
B R=T——FNA—BE=
T ——4% N A+ A HJohn Saliling
S EPEEAR R B E = B [ Pharos
Partners 3z 1 418,000 7T 2 B8 [
B -RNZ_TE——FhLATHA"
John Saliling BERTEHITES * £
FEEHEME 2 —BHA LlE
=ME - BE-T—=-F=A=1+—
BIEFE - B John Saliling 76 £ 4
BAAERRTALTZ—  MEBH
2FEM e (B1F EXXEH )t AR KR
KMiEE8(C) °

RZZE——FANATHEARE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

8.

EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8.

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include 1 (2012: 2) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable to the five

highest paid individuals during the year are as follows:

) NE )

(c) BEBBEHFAL

REBRFAMERRZ2RAEBAT
BRE— R ZE—Z-F WB)E
F HAEMEER EXEHZHTHF
RER - FR A
NN

REFALZHE

2012

—E——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET F&T

Salaries, allowances and bonuses & - EBNRIEA 11,747 10,507
Employer’s contribution to retirement BRIRGTE 2 B EHR

scheme 108 56

Termination benefits BB AR 1,620 =

13,475 10,563

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals fell

within the following bands:

hEsEsHFALHEETIESER
ER -

2012

—T——F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A& AZ

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000 77T — 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 %72 2,000,000 77T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T = 2,500,0008 7T 2 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 &= 3,000,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T E 4,500,000 74 7T 1 —
5 5
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % R MY EE

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

9. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS MBWARE R
An analysis of finance income and costs is as follows: HEWARER 2T
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
(Restated)
(g&=:%)
Finance income: MW A
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF R ZFBUA 3,718 5,320
Net foreign exchange gains on BB B INE e F R
financing activities — 3,208
3,718 8,528
Finance costs: BHER
Interest on bank loans IRITERZF B 884 1,135
Interest on finance lease obligations REREAEZFE - 2
Net foreign exchange losses on BhEE B INEEIS TR
financing activities 1,104 —
Increase in discounted amounts BERF A A Mg I
arising from the passage of time B iBALIREE
(note 28) (H1a28) 3,404 —
5,392 1,137
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2016. Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated at the rate
of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year.

Subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to the
Mainland China enterprise income tax at the standard rate of
25% (2012: 25%).

Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and Mainland
China) profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the applicable rates of
taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

operates.

The amounts of income tax credit/(expense) recorded in the

consolidated income statement represent:

10.

B

ARAERESMERERELE T
—RAE - EBFIBBIE Pofh AR B
FIRBLE 16.5% (=B — =4 : 16.5% )3t

s
B o
=AF

FA R B A b B ST 2 B R A B B 4R 25% (=
T—_F : 25%) 2 REBREHMFENR
TSR

FINEB R B A AN ) S F) 2 B T
ERNZ A ERBUR MR AR A AT
EREEBE 2 RITEAMETE -

LHENGARSERTZAEREDR (X
H)EEE

2013 2012
—E—=F —F—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
(Restated)
(f&&E7))
Current taxation B HNIE
Hong Kong profits tax BEBRER
— current year — RFE (2,286) (324)
— overprovision in prior years — BAEHFE 2 BREEE 324 =
Mainland China enterprise income B A S PTST
tax
— current year — REE (197) (212)
Overseas taxation SN TE
— current year — REE — (79)
— overprovision in prior years — BAHFE 2 BERE 38 78
Deferred taxation IEREFRIE (1,990) (23,268)
(4,111) (23,805)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10.

The amount of tax on the Group’s loss before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

the weighted average tax rate applicable to the loss of the

ez HE)
REEZBREHABRE BIES ERR
REANGAEREBZ METYR R
B BHREeEIERNT

consolidated entities as follows:

2012
—F——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(#E5)
Loss before income tax % IS B AT ES 1B (29,380) (217,256)
Tax credit/(expense) calculated at ZEANEBREEREF,
the average domestic tax rates (BE)ZTFHEHEFEZ
applicable to profits/(losses) in the FIERE ()
respective jurisdictions (8,494) 38,208
Tax effect of: BT e
— income not subject to tax — EAZRHZBA 4,975 1,837
— expenses not deductible for tax — RAHMB (9,556) (23,621)
— profits and losses attributable to — AEEENRENRER
joint ventures 14,081 (6,446)
— overprovision in prior years — BEEFEBREEE 362 78
— tax losses not recognised — KRR HIBEE (5,166) (13,545)
— reduction of tax loss previously — SRR ZRIBEERD
recognised — (19,068)
— others — Hfth (313) (1,248)
Tax expense MESH (4,111) (23,805)

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

For the year ended 31st March 2013, the weighted average
applicable tax rate was 28.9% (2012: 17.6% (restated)). The
change in weighted average applicable tax rate is caused by

a change in the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the

respective jurisdictions.

The share of tax attributable to joint ventures amounting to
HK$14,081,000 (2012: tax credit of HK$6,446,000) is included

in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures” in the

consolidated income statement.

11. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF

THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31st March 2013 includes a loss
of HK$3,609,000 (2012: HK$85,064,000) that has been dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company.

12. DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31st March 2013, a special dividend
of HK20 cents per ordinary shares, as adjusted for the
Capital Reorganisation on 17th September 2012 (note 24(a)),
amounting to HK$269,188,000 was paid on 9th October 2012

(2012: Nil).

Apart from this, no interim dividend was paid during the year
(2012: Nil) and the directors do not recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year ended 31st March 2013

(2012: Nil).

10.

11.

12.

FrEH X (4)

REE-—T—=F=-A=t+—RALtEE"
HRAMEFOHER289I%(ZFE— =
&F:17.6% (KEF)) o BAINEFTH =R
AN ERRERRZASERBA
A2 BFIGE N EEFTEN o

AEDEEEFTE14,081,0008 T(=F
— % B % 6,446,000 7T ) 25 A
REBRRIAELERGE N REE] -

RRATRRREEEE

HE-_Z—=F6=ZA=1+—HILEFEEZX
AR E (L 4R A BB B 1EE518 3,609,000
BIL(ZZT— 4 :85064,000%87T) ' 2
AR R I RFT A EIE o

a9

BHE-_T—=F=A=t+—HItFEE" B2
R-ZE——F+ANBRMERE K20
BLRR —_E——FNA+ LB ZBRAE
AEL AR (ME24(a)) 2ERIRE - &
269,188,000 Bt (=T ——4F : #|) ©
Btz FRYEERGPEERE(ZZ
——F &) RESUIERREHZEC
E—=F=A=+—HItFEE 2 E @K
BE(ZE—=F : &) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

13.

LOSS PER SHARE 13.

Basic loss per share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s loss
attributable to shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BRER
BREFER

SREABBDEARTRRESEAEE
2 BRI AR B BT ERAR 2 i
FHBGHH -

2013 2012
—E-= —F—=
Loss attributable to shareholders of the ZANARIRRER E(GEE(FET)
Company (HK$'000) (33,491) (241,061)
(Restated)
(#&=71))
Weighted average number of ordinary £ 277 % @& 2 kg 98-
shares in issue* 1,345,939,715 1,354,303,980
(Restated)
(#&=71)
Basic loss per share attributable to RARRR B TREAREE
shareholders of the Company CEL)
(HK cents) (2.49) (17.80)
* The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year * HE-T—=FK=-FT—=-F=F=+—H

ended 31st March 2013 and 2012 has been adjusted for the
Capital Reorganisation as defined in note 24(a) to these financial
statements taken place on 17th September 2012.

Diluted loss per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31st March 2013 and
2012 as the Group did not have any potential diluted ordinary
shares during the years ended 31st March 2013 and 2012.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - - BERSZE

Group AEE
Furniture, Plant and
Leasehold, fixtures machinery and
land and Leasehold and office Motor  demonstration ~ Construction
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
gL HE G 2EUR BEREENR
RiEgF EE HAERE hE TERE ERIR a5
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK$000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000
A AT A A7 74z A AT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%) (& 551) e ) (&%) (&%)
31st March 2012 ZE-ZEZf=1-A
At 1st April 2011: RZE-Z%#MA-H:
As previously reported MEAIFER R 33,09 175538 2,883 27,847 25,829 148 364
Effects of early adoption of REABEAHBRE
HKFRSs (note 2.1) b d 7
(Hit2.1) (41,171) (726) (6,902) (2,558) (12,904) (25,829) (90,090)
As restated asj| - 32,370 10,636 325 14,943 - 58,274
At 1st April 2011 RZF——%RA-A - 32310 10,636 325 14,943 - 58,274
Additions AE - 4212 2,507 156 5928 - 12,803
Disposals e - (644) (108) (83) - — (835)
Depreciation (note 7) HE(W#7) - (8.419) (3503) (31) (7,607) = (19,560
Impairment (note 5.2) REWE52) = (26,349) (5,194) = (9,037) = (40,580)
Transfer from inventories BERRE - - = = 536 = 536
Exchange realignment B 8% - 15 6 (10) - - 11
At 31st March 2012 RZZ-Z%=fA=1-A - 1,185 4,344 357 4,763 — 10,649
31st March 2013 RZB-Z5=R=1-A
At 1st April 2012: R-E--#MA-R:
As previously reported NEFIFER 54,501 1,913 16,473 3,169 25,497 17,954 119,507
Effects of early adoption of RERBERHBRE
HKFRSs (note 2.1) Eilrze
(H#o1) (54,591) (728) (12,129) (2,812) (20,734) (17,954) (108,948)
As restated HE] - 1,185 4,344 357 4,763 - 10,649
At 1st April 2012 R-E-—£mA-R - 1,185 4,344 357 4,763 - 10,649
Additions e - - 463 705 1,593 - 2,761
Disposals e - (203) (81) (267) (36) - (587)
Write-off i - - (269) - - - (269)
Depreciation (note 7) wEMW:E7) - (248) (1577) (25) (2,669) - (4,519)
Transfer from inventories BRAGE - - - - 517 - 517
Exchange realignment EfRE - 3 45 17 - - 65
At 31st March 2013 RZF-=%#=f=+-H - 737 2,925 87 4,168 - 8,617
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31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% BERRE @)

Group (continued) REBE(E)
Furniture, Plant and
Leasehold, fixtures machinery and
land and Leasehold and office Motor  demonstration  Construction
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
HELH HE fi REUR BEREENR
REZ EE AR hE TERE EEIR 4y

HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
AT AT A A 747 747 AT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(%)) (&%) (& 551) (& 55) (&%) EEZ) (&%)

Net book amount BERE
At 1st April 2011: RZF——FmA-A:
Cost AR — 48,898 25,714 783 23,980 — 99,375
Accumulated depreciationand  ZiFHERFE
impairment - (16,528) (15,078) (458) (8,037) - (41,101)
Net book amount REFE - 2370 10,636 5 14,043 - 58274
At 31st March 2012 and R=E--%#=f=1-H
1st April 2012: R=F-§WmA-H:
Cost AR - 52,000 28,090 751 30,203 — 111,044
Accumulated depreciaionand ~ Z:HFERHE
impairment - (50815) (23746) (394) (25.440) - (100,395)
Net book amount KEFE = 1,185 4344 357 4763 — 10,649
At 31st March 2013: RZE-=F
=R=1-R:
Cost AR - 38,606 23,254 1,205 30,026 - 93,091
Accumulated depreciationand  ZEHERFE
impairment - (37,869) (20,329) (418) (25,858) - (84,474)
Net book amount KEFE - 737 2,925 787 4,168 - 8,617
The Group’s plant and machinery and demonstration AREBEREREHERE ZHE RH#E A
machinery held under finance leases as at 31st March 2013, EREHERN—E—=F=H=+—8
31st March 2012 and 1st April 2011 were fully depreciated. —E——F=-A=+—HBRkR=-ZE—F@

A—REZERFE -
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31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

15.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B EE
Group AEE
Development
Customer Distribution rights and
Goodwill  relationships ~ Trademarks ~ agreements franch;e f;ge*ﬁ Others Total
&
[k EFBE i PR BHEER i @it
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§000 HK§000 HK§'000 HK§ 000
AT AT AT AT AL AT AT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(#=5)) (#E5)) (#E5)) (#E5))
31st March 2012 “E-CE=fA=1-H
At st April 2011; RZE-——4MA-B:
As previously reported NEAIFMER 380,263 - 11,002 - 3577 14 394,946
Effects of early adoption of REABEAUBRE
HKFRSs (note 2.1) k7
(Hit2.1) (6571) = (11,002) = = (14) (17,677)
As restated ]| 373,692 - - — 3571 — 377,269
At 1st April 2011 R-E——FmA-A 373,692 - - — 3571 — 377,269
Amortisation B - — — - (437) — (437)
Imparment (note 5.2) BEWHZ52) - - - = (2,112) = (2,112)
Write-off (note 5.2) W Wzs2) - - - - (1,028) = (1,028)
At 31st March 2012 RZF-—%#=A=+-H 373,692 — — — — — 373,692
31st March 2013 ZE-ZEZA=1-H
At 1st April 2012; RZE-Z#MA-B:
As previously reported EHFER 380,263 - 10,053 - - 6 390,322
Effects of early adoption of RERBERHBRE
HKFRSs (note 2.1) i d
(Hi21) (6571) - (10,053) - - ©) (16,630)
As restated HE] 373,692 - - - - - 373,692
At 1st April 2012 and at R-E-—£MA-R
31st March 2013 P
=A=t-H 373,692 - - - - - 373,692
Net book amount REFE
At 1st April 2011; RZZ——4MA-R:
Cost WAE 373,692 19,010 — 16,750 4,947 60 414,459
Accumulated amortisation and  ZzFEHEREE
impaiment - (19,010) - (16,750) (1370) (60) (37,190)
Net book amount FEFE 373,692 — — — 3571 — 377,269
At 31st March 2012 and RZF-Z%=A=1-H
1st April 2012; R-%-Z4BA-H:
Cost WNQ 373,692 19,010 — 16,750 2,99 60 412,504
Accumulated amortisationand  ZitEERHE
impairment - (19,010) - (16,750) (2.992) (60) (38812)
Net book amount FEFE 373,692 = = = = = 373,692
At 315t March 2013; m:f;if
=R=1-H
Cost WNE 373,692 19,010 - 16,750 2,992 - 412,444
Accumulated amortisation and ~ ZitEERHE
impairment - (19,010) - (16,750) (2,992) - (38,752)
Net book amount BEFE 373,692 - - - - - 373,692
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31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

15.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units

identified according to operating segments. A segment-level

15. BEEE#)
BERERNH

HBDIRBEEDBEIRERKBEREE
HEM - PEEEZAEIEMEZ710

summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below:

Hi-tech distribution and
services operation

= R an 70 $H Ko AR 7% S 75

T

Group

EE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R=E—=F R-ZB——F R-ZT——%F
=A=+—8H EF=F=F mA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET T FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(& =31) (Fe&71)
373,692 373,692 373,692

Hi-tech distribution and services operation cash-generating

unit

The recoverable amount of the hi-tech distribution and
services operation cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount
rate applied to cash flow projections is 12% (2012: 11%). Due
to the uncertainty, no growth rate was used to extrapolate the
cash flows of the hi-tech distribution and services operation
cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF
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31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 15. BREEE &)
Hi-tech distribution and services operation cash-generating ENEERAHERREEERSELEN
unit (continued) (%)
Assumptions were used in the value in use calculations BHE_ T =—FRkR-_FT——F=A=+—
of the hi-tech distribution and services operation cash- BIEFE e R ERD #E MR ESH
generating unit for the years ended 31st March 2013 and SCEABMNZFREBAFEEARR - U
2012. The following describes each key assumption on which TAREERERETHEREARMELZ
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake B mERAMERE  FEF ERF
impairment testing of goodwill:
Distribution rights — The continuance of the distribution rights DiEE — ERRRKRSERERD HE
for the hi-tech distribution operation in the foreseeable future WD HERSE  BBAERREINK AR
would not need any additional costs or investment. "B o
Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the EEEMNE — AUEBETHEEENEEER
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is based on TIREBARBEREEETSERESE -
past performance and management’'s expectations for market
development.
Discount rates — The discount rates used are pre-tax and ARIRE — FRIRAZBRIA R AT AT Rk
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units. BRAEN 2 BERFERR -
16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RME AR 2R
In the Company’s statement of financial position, details of RARBZMBHRREA KB AR Z
interests in subsidiaries are as follows: HEmZFHBWT
Company
AT
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2013 2012
i i
—E-=F —T——F
=g=+-A =A=+-§
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET F&T
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRG  HERKAE — =
Amounts due from subsidiaries, included — JEUHI B AT ZIE - 5t A
in non-current assets (note 36(b)) SERBVEE(H7E 36(b)) 932,019 891,429
932,019 891,429
Provision for impairment PERIERE L] (279,785) (235,360)
652,234 656,069

An impairment of HK$279,785,000 (2012: HK$235,360,000)
for its amount due from subsidiaries has been made by the
Company as the carrying amounts exceeds the estimated

future cash flows.

HREEAEBLHAEFRETE A
N EE Y E KK B A R KIEE DR
279,785,000 (= & — = £
235,360,000/ 7T) °
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31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

16.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the

Company, which, in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the results for the year or formed a substantial

portion of the net assets of the Group as at 31st March 2013.

16. RIIB AR 2= (&)

NTEHNEEZRREIBXEREEARFE
EEIBRAKEEEFEETRZH DA
REMBRAERE - EERR - FHIIEM
MEAREEBRREBNITE

To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Name

1

American Tec Company
Limited
FRETRBERAR

American Tec Electronic
India Private Limited*

NAS American Tec
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (ii)*

s TR (ERM)
BRAR (i)

North Asia Strategic (HK)
Limited (i)
L BRI (EE)BRAR()

Perfect Combo Limited

BREFRAH

Place of incorporation or
establishment/operation
EME LR LS
LEn

Hong Kong

People’s Republic of China
(“PRC")/Mainland China
REARLNE
([HE ),/ B

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

Particulars of issued
share capital/

Percentage
of equity
interest held

Principal activities registered capital by the Group
TEER BRTRE/ KB
HMERFE BRABZADL
Trading of SMT equipment and 60,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
investment holding of HK$1 each
SMTREE 5 KR EHE R 60,000,000 %
BREE1ETZEER
Provision of machinery 1,879,000 ordinary shares 100%
installation, training, business of INR10 each
promotion, repair and 1,879,000 f%
maintenance services SREB10EL 2 TBR
RftgRRE w1l
R - BERRERS
Trading of electronic products, US$1,000,000 100%
machinery and spare parts 1,000,000 7T
and provision of repair and
installation services
ETEM RBERTBHEIUR
REBER TERS
Provision of management 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
services and investment 1IREGE VBT SBR
holding
RALE R RS LR AR
Operation of quick service 145,000,000 ordinary shares 100%

of HK$1 each
145,000,000 BB EE
1B LR

restaurants in Hong Kong
under the Burger King brand
FE& 7 Burger King f &

BEREEE
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RKMIBAR ZEH2)
Percentage
Particulars of issued of equity

Place of incorporation or

share capital/

interest held

Name establishment/operation Principal activities registered capital by the Group
A% AR LRI L TEXH BRTRE/ REBE
Fd-$ick HAMERFE RABZEE AL
Tianjin American Tec PRC/Mainland China Trading of electronic products US$200,000 100%
Trading Company B/ B A and spare parts 200,000
Limited (ii)* ETERRTYHES
RERBETERES
BRAT (ji)*
AYTRBXEE TR PRC/Mainland China Trading of electronic products, RMB3,000,000 100%
BRAR (i) R/ E AL machinery and spare parts AR 3,000,0007C
and provision of repair and
installation services
EfEM  BERZHHEEIUR
RELERTERS
LT EEEEFRECRIN) PRC/Mainland China Trading of electronic products, US$150,490 100%
BRAR (ii)* R/ HE R machinery and spare parts 150,490 % 7T

Notes:

and provision of repair and

installation services

ETEM BRNTHHEIUR

RS R T KR

(i) Shares of this company are held directly by the Company.

Shares of the other companies are held indirectly.

(i) These are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established in the
PRC to operate for up to 30 years until 2023 to 2039.

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member

firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

FZRF BN BARREERE - At AR

ZEMTIMERE -

WETRAFPBEK ZINGBERE - L& H
BEZ-t+FEHEE_T_ZFIN_T-NF-

WM BB LK Gt M ek ok &t
ENEB TR AR 2 EMK B RAEX -
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

17. REELEZRE

Group
rEE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R=F—=%F R=Z =% R-T——%F
=BA=+—H =A=+—H MA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 176,386 173,566 197,576
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEIH 2 R 6,571 6,571 6,571
182,957 180,137 204,147
Provision for impairment DERI=EE L] (45,273) — —
137,684 180,137 204,147

The Group subscribed for 100,000,000 non-redeemable
convertible preferred shares of Coland Group Limited
(“Coland”). Upon full conversion of the preferred shares to
ordinary shares, the Group will have a 40% equity interest in
Coland. In accordance with an agreement between the Group
and the other joint venturer, all matters relating to Coland
require joint approval by both parties. Therefore, Coland
has been accounted for as a joint venture. Coland and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the refining and sale
of fish oil, processing and sale of fishmeal, manufacture and
sale of aquatic feed products, aquaculture, and processing

and sale of aquatic products.

The recoverable amounts of the investments in Coland at
the end of the reporting period, which include the carrying
amount of goodwill, are determined at the higher of the value
in use and the fair value less cost to sell. In determining
the value in use of the investment, the Group estimates its
share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from dividend to be received and from its
ultimate disposal. The impairment loss recognised for the year
ended 31st March 2013 is estimated based on the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from dividend to be received and its ultimate disposal which

was lower than the carrying value of the investment in Coland.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. REEEZRE®)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TEREBINAEB 2 EEREZHEERH
information of the Group’s joint ventures: C
Share of the joint ventures' assets and liabilities: EhHEELECEERABRE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
RZZE—ZF RZZT——%F
=A=+—H mA—A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(g E5) (&E7))
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEREEE 153,189 153,356 128,969
Current assets mEBEE 342,734 453,319 443,484
495,923 606,675 572,453
LIABILITIES B&
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (10,130) (12,523) (14,108)
Current liabilities MEEE (304,858) (415,379) (356,353)
(314,988) (427,902) (370,461)
Non-controlling interests FEPE I 1 M 2 (4,549) (5,207) (4,416)
Net assets EEFE 176,386 173,566 197,576
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. REELEZREW)
Share of the joint ventures’ results: EIEEEE 2 FEE
For the year ended 31st March
BE=ZA=+—HLEE
2013 2012
—EB—=F —E—CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(#&=71))
Revenue A 597,664 744,236
Expenses s (582,206) (781,589)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRATERADEF], (E518) 15,458 (37,353)
Income tax credit/(expense) FreRigE (1) (14,081) 6,446
Non-controlling interests FEVE Il 1 M 675 (331)
Profit/(loss) after tax B R (&E) 2,052 (31,238)
Other comprehensive income HEmrmikas 768 7,228
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREER (BB EE

for the year 2,820 (24,010)

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF
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31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

17.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

The following is a list of the principal joint ventures, which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group as at 31st March 2013. To give details of other

17. REELECRE(#)

ATRAR-_F—=F=ZA=+—BZ=EE
MA%Z%% CBRERRALFAELE
ERXEREEAFERELBRALHE
ﬁ%ﬂaﬁ}%%ﬁ CcEBERR BHEME
BEEZHBIHEEHRBBENITR °

joint ventures would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

Name

&%

Coland Group Limited
SEEEERAR

Coland Holdings
Company Limited
SREERHERAR

Coland Shipping Limited
BREMBEERAR

Fujian Coland Bioscience
and Technology
Co., Ltd. (ii)*
BREREMRR
BRAR (i)

Place of
incorporation or
establishment/
operation

HMB LKL
mEHY

Bermuda/Hong Kong
BRE/ B

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong

BA

PRC/Mainland China
RE /R E R

Particulars Percentage of
of issued equity interest
share capital/ indirectly held
Principal activities registered capital by the Group
BRARE/ ZEEEERER
TEER HMERFE AEZADL
Investment holding 150,000,000 ordinary shares 40%
BAER of HK$0.1 each
and 100,000,000
non-redeemable convertible
preferred shares of
HK$0.1 each
150,000,000 A& &A%
EE0ABTL EBRR
100,000,000 fx &A%
EE0.1E T A
AR E SR
Sourcing of fishmeal and 5,000,000 shares 40%
fish oil, and property and of HK$1 each
investment holding 5,000,000 fx & %
AP RERRE R EfE 18Tz iRkH
WERHERREER
Provision of shipping agency 10 shares of HK$1 each 40%
services 10RBREMB 1 BT2RH
RAMBRIERS
Refining of fish oil US$7,500,000 40%
fa R 7,500,000 5
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17.

Name

&

Fujian Coland Enterprises
Co., Ltd. (i)*
RRSEEFARAR ()

Fujian Coland Logistics
Co., Ltd. (i)*
BESENRARALH ()

o]

Fujian Coland Marine
Bioengineering
Co., Ltd. (i)

BESREFEYIRE
BRAR (i)

Fujian Coland-Nosan
Feed Co., Ltd. (i)*
BREEFHARAR ()

Fuzhou China Seafoods
Company Limited (iii)*
BMERKERRAR (i)

Fuzhou Economic
Technical Development
Zone Coland Feeds
Co., Ltd. (ii)*

BMFAER A
BRARA (i)

Place of
incorporation or
establishment/
operation

AR IR
Fd-$ick

PRC/Mainland China
HE /R E R

PRC/Mainland China
HRE /R E R

PRC/Mainland China
/R E R

PRC/Mainland China

FRE /R E R

PRC/Mainland China
RE /R E A

PRC/Mainland China
B/ R E R

Principal activities

TEEHY

Processing of fishmeal,
refining of fish oil, trading
of processed fishmeal and
refined fish oil, property and
investment holding

BT KBRS NI
BRBRAWES  MER
ARREER

Sale and supply of fishmeal,
and property and investment
holding

BNHEREEURNERE
RREER

Manufacturing and sale of
fish oil

BREERHAE

Production and distribution of
feeds
FRHEE RS 8

Fish farming and sale
RERHERSE

Manufacturing and sale of
aquatic feeds

KEFRHESER HE

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF

F>

KeR&m

Particulars

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRITRE/
HMERFEE

RMB52,000,000
ARK#52,000,000 7T

RMB42,000,000
AR 42,000,000 7

RMB50,000,000
AR 50,000,0007T

RMB20,000,000

AR 20,000,0007¢

RMB3,000,000
AR 3,000,0007T

US$2,500,000
2,500,000 7T

Percentage of
equity interest
indirectly held
by the Group
AEERERTR
AEZADL

40%

40%

40%

24%

32%

40%
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17.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. REELEZRE#®)
Place of Particulars
incorporation or of issued

establishment/

share capital/

Percentage of
equity interest
indirectly held
by the Group
AEERERFR
AEZADL

24%

40%

40%

40%

40%

ZERTARBEPEZZZMAIEBED
o,

FZERANREFBEAREM 2 FIEEDR

Name operation Principal activities registered capital
MBS BRITRE/
a7 R TEER EMERFEE
BINHUBEKEBRAR (ii)*  PRC/Mainland China Abalone farming and sale RMB3,000,000
B/ E R ERERHENA AR#3,000,0007T
BT EEKEES PRC/Mainland China Sale of aquatic products RMB500,000
BRAR (i) HEL/RE R HEKEER ARH500,0007
Ocean Resource Macao Macau Sourcing of fishmeal and fish MOP500,000
Commercial Offshore ol oil, and property holding 500,000 BP9 #
Limited* BN RBRREARDE
BRRPIRE R B R A
BRAR
Wuhan Coland Aquatic PRC/Mainland China Purchase, processing, sale and US$10,100,000
Products and Food RE /R E R export of aquatic products 10,100,000 % 7T
Co., Ltd. (i)* KEEMEE NI #HER
RERBKERM H A%
ARRA (i)
REZEmsEAARAH (i) PRC/Mainland China Production and distribution of RMB27,253,000
/R E R aquatic feeds (2012: US$3,800,000)
KE SR R 8 AR 27,253,0007
(ZZ—=%:3,800,000%7T)
Notes: Hiaz -
(i) These companies are registered as wholly-foreign-owned (i)
enterprises under PRC law.
(i) These companies are Sino-foreign equity joint ventures (ii)
registered under PRC law. £
(ili)  These companies are registered as domestic limited liability iy &%
companies under PRC law. RA] e

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

RABEPEEREMARNEERAT

WG M BB LKt M E Bk ok & &t
=R EHRBR MR B RARER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 18. AItHESREE
Group
TEE
2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
At beginning of year F1) — 2,109
Changes in fair value recognised in RE A 2 E RS R 2
other comprehensive income NAEES — (443)
Disposals HE — (1,823)
Exchange realignment FE 5, — 157
At end of year FHR — —
Available-for-sale financial assets include  AJ{tHES R EEBIE T 5
the following: HE :
Listed equity securities — overseas AR FES — Foh — —
19. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19. Hi3EREEE
Group
rEE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
RIE—_F RZTE——%F
=A=+—H MA—AH
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEr
(Restated) (Restated)
(#&=751) (#=71))
Rental and other deposits HeRHEMZES 7,276 7,263 5,761
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

20. INVENTORIES 20. 7K
Group
AEE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2012 2011
R=Z =% R=Z——F
=A=+—H MA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(& =751) (#&=7))
Raw materials R % 757 1,114 815
Finished goods BURK 1,646 1,254 8,562
Consumables SR 369 463 411
2,772 2,831 9,788
21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21. fTHEE€mIT A
Group
REE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R-F——F R_F——%F
EFZETF—FH MA—H
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(1 &%) (r&&7))
Forward foreign exchange REIMNES R (At (a)
contracts (note (a)) — — 34
Note: Hiat -
(a) The notional principal amount of the outstanding forward (a) RKRZZE—FWMA—H KRBT ZEIINE
exchange contracts as at 1st April 2011 was HK$5,845,000 AR ZBEAR LR R5,8450008 T(KEE
(restated). 7)) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ESEWRERHEMERRE

1562

Group Company
AEE AQH
As at As at As at As at As at
RIEQUETC I 31st March 1st April  EEIEMIET)) 31st March
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012
—F--f ZT——F% S
A=+—-H mA—AR EFET=E
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FET FAET
(Restated) (Restated)
(=31 (mE31)
Trade and bills receivables BHRNFERERER 75,467 144,105 110,436 - —
Less: Impairment of trade o BHREMGRIERE
receivables (2,382) (2,374) (3,429) - —
Trade and bills receivables, BORYGERERER
net (note (a)) FR(ME(a) 73,085 141,731 107,007 - =
Prepayments IR 2,915 3,110 7,292 — —
Rental deposits — current portion &% % — R&&5 3,498 4,479 7,319 - —
Interest and other receivables 8 RE A YR 4,215 1,805 10,990 57 47
83,713 151,125 132,608 57 47
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Trade and bills receivables (continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on letters of credit or documents against payment, in
some cases granting a credit period of 30 to 90 days,
except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. An ageing analysis of trade and
bills receivables, based on invoice date and net of

impairment, as at the end of the reporting period is as

22, ESZERWHRAREMEBYWREE)

(a)

EZRWREARERRE(E)

AEFHRTEFPHETEZR 2GR —K
RERBEINRZE  @AREFE
EENTI0BZE0RATEREES -
WHEP —REZBEMARBRIN -
REREKR REZZAH BH
JE Mo 5k T8 R IR R A0 BR R B 2 BR
BT

follows:

Group

rEE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R=B—Z=F A S WZZ——%F
=A=t+-—H =A=+—H MA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET THET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(#&=E5) (#&=71))
90 days or less 90 HEk LA 49,116 138,740 94,079
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 12,910 2,665 12,255
181 to 270 days 181 HZE 270 H 7,963 205 520
271 to 365 days 271HZE365H 3,096 2 83
Over 365 days 8@ 365 H — 119 70
73,085 141,731 107,007

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Since the Group’s trade and bills receivables relate to
a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

over its trade and bills receivable balances.

REESKE HERWE Z YRR
HEBRRESUZEREEER
%o BARAEEE ST MR BN
He HRAKEZE 5 ERFIAR
BREBESRAETRES B
BEREPZEERR AKEY
BB S RMFE R ERRBER
REEMERRREMERRETZ
REZ -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF

Trade and bills receivables (continued)

22. EZRWHREAREMERRIRE)

(a)

As at 31st March 2012, trade receivables which are less

than six months past due are normally not considered as

impaired except for a balance of HK$62,000 (restated)
(1st April 2011: HK$420,000 (restated)).

As at 31st March 2013, trade receivables of HK$11,059,000
(81st March 2012: HK$326,000 (restated); 1st April
2011: HK$673,000 (restated)) were past due but not
impaired, as they related to a number of independent

customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

The ageing analysis of these trade and bills receivables

is as follows:

EZRWHREAREBRRE(A)

R—ZE——F=A=+—H TR
NEAZEZREWGFERERY
WARABLIRBE ERNHAEE
62,0008 T(KEH))(ZFE——FW
B —H : 420,000 (&£ =%)) 8
BHISh o

RZE—=%=A=+—8"
11,059,000 (=T —=—F = 8
=+—H : 326,0008 T (KEZ) :
—ZT——&A—H :673,000/87T
(=) 2 E S EKFBECBIE
I ERE - TR E S UK
B K BB F i e R R 8k 2 B
VUEF - %EE 5 EWIEKER
BRI -

Group

AEE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R=-®B—Z= RZZE—= RZT——%F
=H=+—H =A=+—8H mA—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(& &E31) (% &351)

Over 6 months and up to 61EAZE9{EA

9 months 7,963 205 520
Over 9 months HBiE9E A 3,096 121 153
11,059 326 673




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Trade and bills receivables (continued)

22. BESEWRERAEMEVRRE )

(a)

As at 31st March 2013, trade and bills receivables
of HK$2,382,000 (31st March 2012: HK$2,374,000
(restated); 1st April 2011: HK$3,429,000 (restated))

were impaired and fully provided for. The ageing of

these receivables is as follows:

EZRWHREAREBRRE(A)

WR=ZZT—=Z=%=ZA=Z+—8"
2,382,000 T(ZE — = F = A
=+—8 : 2,374,000 T (LEF):
—T——FPA—H : 3,429,000
TL(EEEF)) 2 B 5 FEWGRIE & I
=R HIBREN 2 BIEL EE - Z
LRWHIBZREROTAT

Group
EE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R=E—=F R-B——F RZT——%F
=A=+—8H EF=F—F mA—R
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (F&&71))
Less than 6 months 61E AR — 62 420
Over 6 months and up to 61EAZ=91EA
9 months — — 596
Over 9 months HBid91E A 2,382 2,312 2,413
2,382 2,374 3,429
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. EFRWFIERAMERRE S
(a) Trade and bills receivables (continued) (a) EZEWREREKREEE)
Movements of the impairment of trade receivables are B HRWFTEREZ 2T ¢
as follows:
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(LE5)
At beginning of year FH 2,374 3,429
Impairment losses reversed A B 1R — (1,049)
Exchange realignment b 5 A= 8 (6)
At end of year FR 2,382 2,374
The creation or release of provision for impaired BB B B W R IE 2 B R e B e
receivables has been included in the profit or loss. BIABRZAN - ETEBATSE—F
Amounts charged to the allowance account are I B IE - AR E RN 2 508
generally written off when there is no expectation of — R T LA S o

recovering the amounts any further.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B X% R MY R

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Trade and bills receivables (continued)

22. BESEWRERAEMEVRRE )

(a)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

EEZRWHREARBERRE(Z)

AEEESREFEREREE 2
FREEN TIES BB

Group
REE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R=B—Z=F A S W-ZT——F
=HA=+—H =A=+—H MA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT FHL
(Restated) (Restated)
(#=51)) (LE5)
Hong Kong dollar BIT 350 488 —
US dollar EV 34,573 56,187 29,846
RMB ARE 9,214 8,646 5,011
Japanese Yen HJt 28,689 76,124 71,914
Other currencies Hih & 259 286 236
73,085 141,731 107,007
Certain bills receivable are pledged as security for the ETREREREERBIERSRNEREE
Group’s banking facilities. Details are set out in note 33 TRE ZBR - FBHNMBRE
to the financial statements. MizE33 -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the (b) REFHR ZaFERREES

reporting period is the carrying amount of the trade and

other receivables.

& WK IR K B At FE MR RIR 2 R EIE ©

2012/13 ANNUAL REPORT Fif

157



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23. HEeRBRESESEEERCEFRIT
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 7R
Group Company
HEE Y

As at As at As at As at As at

31st March EERREVELE] st April - BEREIMIEI BN 31st March
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012
—E-cF bl EE — = —T--F
=A=f-H MA—H BL:Ekal=E-A=1—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET FAET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(& &51) (&30

Cash at banks and on hand FIIRFERSE 232,486 314,301 466,163 73,121 166,610
Time deposits EHER 323,765 569,752 486,020 323,510 569,496
Cash and bank balances ReRRITESH 556,251 884,053 952,183 396,631 736,106
Less: Pledged bank deposits i BEBRITER - — (293) - —
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB eEEEE 556,251 884,053 951,890 396,631 736,106
At 31st March 2013, the effective interest rate on short-term R-ZE—=F=A=+—8 ' ZHET
bank deposits was approximately 0.56% (2012: 0.68%) per GHRZEBEBRFENENAE056%(ZFT—=
annum. These deposits have an average maturity of 24 days F:0.68%) ° EFHRZFHENEHAR A
(2012: 29 days). 24B(=ZFE——4%:29H0) -

At 1st April 2011, the pledged deposits were pledged as R-ZZE——FMA—H  BEBERIER
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities. ERAEERITHE < EFm -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash and bank balances were denominated in the following

23. RERALCEBEBEARCEFRT
(2 NC)

Be RIRITRESRA TSI B R EL

currencies:
Group Company
AEE EUN
As at As at As at As at As at
RIGAUETC I 31st March 1st April  ERIGTETH) 31st March
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012
—BE-=F —T——F —T——F —E-= —T——F
ZA=t-0B EhEapl] mA—B BEEam:E=A=1—FH
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET TET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(& &51) (&7
Hong Kong dollar on 323,623 657,293 744,976 317,923 646,095
US dollar e 181,268 127,589 93,948 78,708 90,011
RMB AR 16,630 12,159 5,781 - —
Japanese Yen Bt 31,712 83,923 105,318 — —
Other currencies H gk 3,018 3,089 2,160 — =
556,251 884,063 952,183 396,631 736,106

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$16,630,000 (31st March 2012: HK$12,159,000 (restated);
1st April 2011: HK$5,781,000 (restated)). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

RERER - AEEUAREAEZRS
N SR1T 458 /516,630,0008 T(=ZF—=
F=A=+—H:12,159,000/8 T (&L =
H): ZF——FMWA—H :5,781,000%
T(EES)) c ARETIERLBRAE
fhEHE - SR - AR IR R B P i SN BE B R i
PIR4E  SERNEEEMRTE  ~NEE
BEEEREETINEEB ZRITHEAR
BEBABEMER o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

24. SHARE CAPITAL

24, BA

Ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each

Preference shares
of HK$0.01 each

BRO.01BTZEER ER0.01ETZBER
Ordinary Preference
Number share Number share
of shares capital of shares capital Total
RO#ME  EBRRA ROBE  BERRA am
Note ‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TR FET TR FET FET
Authorised: ETE
At 31st March 2012 and RZF—ZFK
2013 —2—=f
=A=1+—H 40,000,000 400,000 30,000,000 300,000 700,000
Issued: BET:
At 1st April 2011 RZZ——%F
mMA—H 13,596,763 135,968 = — 135,968
Cancellation of shares THEBRRH
repurchased (130,804) (1,308) — — (1,308)
At 31st March 2012 and  R=ZF—=fF
1st April 2012 ZR=1t—-HEk
—ZEZ-—FWNA—AH 13,465,959 134,660 - - 134,660
Cancellation of shares 8B BE K7
repurchased (6,570) (66) — — (66)
Share consolidation & fn& B (a) (12,113,450) (121,135) — — (121,135)
At 31st March 2013 R=E-—=%
=A=+—H 1,345,939 13,459 - - 13,459

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1t35 SREZIZIRE R A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a) Pursuant to the special resolution passed on

14th September 2012, the capital reorganisation (the

“Capital Reorganisation”) which became effective on

17th September 2012 consisted of the following:

Share consolidation, whereby every 10 issued
shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into
1 ordinary share of HK$0.10 (the “Consolidated
Share”);

Capital reduction, whereby the par value of each
issued Consolidated Share was reduced from
HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by cancelling HK$0.09 of
the paid-up capital on each issued Consolidated
Share and the total number of Consolidated
Shares was rounded down to a whole number by
eliminating any fraction of a Consolidated Share in
the issued share capital of the Company following

the share consolidation; and

The credit arising from the capital reduction was
transferred to the contributed surplus account
of the Company such that the Company may
apply such surplus in any manner as it considers
appropriate subject to compliance with the

Companies Act.

24. KA
(a)

=D
(A8 /

BER-ZZE—Z—FNLA+HBABER
ZHERRER R=T—=—FNA
TERAEBZRAZTH(IRAE
B BEEULTEE

‘&0 BT 10RER™E
BHO.0O1BTZERITRMNES
HAEIBREECI0BTZER
AR (T & B 1)
ARAHIR - B EREETE
HiRGH 2 EEEEBRTHE
REBETE RN E FRR
0.0977T * RO 10 CEIRZE
0.01870 - WD & FH1EE
BEEARREBITRASZ
FRZHEGRD - 56 0%
NBHAREEHR &

PRAEIR AT E A 2 ERE BT
RRAB 2 EHEBRE  BER
REAIAEEST REVEZIERT
NEHRBEE 2 EA 3 ER
LB
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

25. RESERVES 25. #f%E
Group ZS-3
Retained
Investment Cumulative profits/
Contributed revaluation Treasury translation  (accumulated
surplus reserves shares adjustments losses) Total
REEf HER REER/
AR i ERR ik (RitEE) g
(note (a)) (note (b))
(Hi&() (&)
Note HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
it AT AT AT AT AL AL
Balances at 1st April 2011 RZE—%MA-A
284 1,240,238 1,143 (1,264) 21,499 117,059 1,378,675
Loss for the year ERER - - - = (241,061) (241,061)
Available-for-sale financial AR HESRHEE -

asses:

Changes in fair value (note 18) A% (EEE(H3218) — = = = (443)

Reclassification adjustments RHEMEA

for gains inclued in the FRERRL

consolidated income Wil EN AR

statement as a result of ik

the disposal - - - - (700)
Currency translation BEBL

differences of foreign EMERER

operations (restated) (&E5)) - = 301 = 301
Share of other comprehensive  FE[FAS0EY

income of joint ventures Aol

(restated) (&E5)) = = 7228 = 7,208

Total comprehensive income/ ~ £R2ERE/

(loss) for the year (FE)EE — = 7529 (241,061) (234,675)
Share repurchase BERA (c) - (4.428) - = (4,428)
Cancellation of shares HHEEERA

repurchased (c) — 5,488 — (4,409) 1,079
Balances at 31st March 2012and R=E-—£=F=+-H

at 1st April 2012 k=E2-—F#MmAF-A

248 1,240,238 (204) 29,028 (128411) 1,140,651
Loss for the year ERER - - - (33,491) (33,491)
Currency translation differences B/ ¥B EEER

of foreign operations 28 - - 313 - 33
Share of other comprehensive  ERA%MEL

income of joint ventures =0 - - 768 - 768
Total comprehensive income/ ~ ER2EKE/

(loss) for the year (BE)EE - - 1,081 (33,491) (32,410)
Share repurchase Bk (c) - (54) - - (54)
Cancellation of shares HHEEERG

repurchased (c) - 258 - (204) 54
Capital reduction (note 24(a)  BRAEE(H24(3) 121,135 - - - 121,135
Special dividend (note 12) RAREWE12) (269,188) - - - (269,188)
Balances at 31st March 2013~ W=EF-=%=A=1-H

24 1,092,185 - 30,109 (162,106) 960,168

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b5 SRERIZIRAR A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

25.

RESERVES (continued) 25. fEfEE)
Company SN
Contributed Treasury  Accumulated
surplus shares losses Total
EaRs BEER B4 | et
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
i3 FHET FET FET FET
Balances at 1st April 2011 RZZ——%NA—-A
255 1,240,238 (1,264) (32,693) 1,206,281
Loss for the year and total FRBER
comprehensive loss FREEEE
for the year k] — — (66,742) (66,742)
Share repurchase BERG (c) — (4,428) = (4,428)
Cancellation of shares B BERG
repurchased (c) — 5,488 (4,409) 1,079
Balances at 31st March 2012 R-Z——fF=f=+—H
and at 1st April 2012 R=—E——&mA—A
b1 1,240,238 (204) (103,844) 1,136,190
Loss for the year and total FRBER
comprehensive loss FAZEER
for the year Fek ] — — (42,116) (42,116)
Share repurchase BERR (c) - (54) - (54)
Cancellation of shares B ERRG
repurchased (c) — 258 (204) 54
Capital reduction (note 24(a)) BB (it 24(a)) 121,135 - - 121,135
Special dividend (note 12) KRl E(Hiit12) (269,188) — — (269,188)
Balances at 31st March 2013 RZE—=%=A=1+—H
b 1,092,185 - (146,164) 946,021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

25. RESERVES (continued)

Company (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change on the fair value of available-for-
sale investments held at the end of the reporting date
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policy set out in note 2.14 to the financial statements.
Cumulative translation adjustments

The cumulative translation adjustments represent
cumulative foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of operations
outside Hong Kong which are dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy of foreign currencies, which

is set out in note 2.7 to the financial statements.

The following describes the share repurchased and
cancelled by the Company during the year and the
number of shares described had not been adjusted
for the share consolidation as described in note 24(a)
that occurred subsequent to these repurchases and

cancellation.

During the year ended 31st March 2013, the Company
repurchased a total of 1,400,000 (2012: 117,614,000)
ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
and 6,570,000 (2012: 130,804,000) shares were
cancelled by the Company. Upon the cancellation of the
6,570,000 (2012: 130,804,000) repurchased, the issued
share capital of the Company was reduced by the par
value of HK$66,000 (2012: HK$1,308,000). The premium
paid on the repurchase of the shares of HK$204,000
(2012: HK$4,409,000), including transaction costs, was
charged to the accumulated losses of the Company.
As at 31st March 2013, no (2012: 5,170,000) ordinary
shares were repurchased but not yet cancelled by the

Company.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED dtz5 SRER 1= ARG R A E]

25. f##&@)
AT (E)

(a)

(b)

(c)

REEMHE

188 5 i G 18 45 1 o 1R B SR A4
A ERE Y AT ERHER
B IR RE N 214 B
FIBFRE -

R EZHE

RIFERFAREREFTEBE A
EB 2 BRERAEE 2 RFHEIH
ERER  WREMEHRKRME2.7
FRERSNEIRE 2 SETBURERIE ©

TX @t FARRRRELRZ &
AEH 2 Bt o BTt AR 0 2R B R FE
BRED REHEET RN A B
(RBUAART 3 24(a) Pl ) {E L -

BE-_FT—="F=-A=t+—H1Lt
FEAN RRARRBRAEDES
1,400,000 (= & — = £F:
117,614,000/ ) & 2 7] & @ A% -
iMm6,570,000 (= T — =
130,804,000 /% ) iZ 1» B # &N 2 &
FE8H o 5E$56,570,000 (=& — =
4 : 130,804,000 % ) B% 8% = % 1
B ARRBBEITRAZEBEE
B 466,000 T(= T — = F:
1,308,000 % 7T ) © H& [B A% 17 I FT 2
i 2 % {8 204,000 T(Z T — =
F : 4,409,0007% 7T ) (B 3E R 5 K
RN)EBARAZ R EEFIO °
R-_TE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—H A&
(ZZ——% : 5,170,000 i%) L@
[BEEZANGIEAEiRi S o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B X% R MY R

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

26. BORROWINGS 26. HE
Borrowings are analysed as follows: BESFTET
Group
AEE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R-B—=% RZZE—ZF RZZT——%F
=HA=+-—8H =H=+—H MA—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FEr FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(#E5) (sE:%))
Bank borrowings (note (a)) RITIEE (HaE (a) 16,504 61.865 29 163
Finance lease obligations RVE R EAE
te (b ifz:

(note (b)) (B17E (b)) . o o
Total borrowings Epsit] 16,504 61,871 29,190
Less: Current portion B mBER D (16,504) (61,871) (29,184)
Non-current portion IEMENEB - — 6
(a) Bank borrowings (a) TEE

Group
rEE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R-ZB—Z=F RZZT——F RZZT——%F
=A=+—H =A=+—H mA—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEr FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(#E5) (&%)
Current: mE :
Discounted bills with AT I8 RIEE &
recourse — secured — BHEA — 137 —
Trust receipt loans EEBURE
— secured — M — 39,725 —
Bank loans — secured RITER — HHEA 16,504 22,003 28,317
Bank overdrafts H|ITEX
— secured — HiKH — — 846
16,504 61,865 29,163
Total bank borrowings RITE BT 16,504 61,865 29,163
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B % R MY EE

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

(a)

26. BORROWINGS (continued) 26. fEE#)
Bank borrowings (continued) (a) WBITEEE)
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are RITEEZEREBEDATIESR
denominated in the following currencies: B :
Group
rEE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R=B—Z=F RIE——F R-T——%F
=A=+—8H =A=+—~H mA—A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET THET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(& =31) (#&5E51)
Hong Kong dollar BT 16,504 22,003 29,163
US dollar ETT — 32,285 —
Japanese Yen Bt — 7,577 —
16,504 61,865 29,163

The effective contractual interest rates (per annum) at

the end of the reporting period were as follows:

Discounted bils ~ BEMEERE
with recourse 28

Trust receipt loans ~~ EFREER

Bank loans EGLE

At 31st March 2013
A=§-Z£=f=1-R
Hong Kong s Japanese
dollar dollar Yen
B in An
1.7%-2.5% - -

At 31st March 2012 (Restated)

RERMRZERAOMNERGRF

T

At 1st April 2011 (Restated)

RZF-—F=A=F-A(&EF) K-E-—FMA-A(£E5)

Hong Kong Us Japanese  Hong Kong Us Japanese

dollar dollar Yen dollar dollar Yen

AT Eo i1 AT i )

- 24% - - - -

- 24% 2.3% - - -

18%-2.3% - - 16%6.3% - -
HMRUR BN AEKR  HWAA

The carrying amounts of all bank borrowings

approximate to their fair values, as the impact of

discounting is not significant.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

26. BORROWINGS (continued)

(a) Bank borrowings (continued)

Bank borrowings repayable: BITEEENATHIRERS

On demand or within 1 year RERKFAFUR

26. fEE#)

()

As at
31st March
2013

N=EB—=

=A=+-H
HKS$°000
FET

16,504

RITEE(E)

Group

r5E
As at
31st March
2012
R=F—=F
=A=+—H
HK$'000
FHET
(Restated)
(& =E51)

61,865

As at

1st April
2011
R=ZF——%
mA—H
HK$'000
FHET
(Restated)
(&=E51)

29,163
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B % R MY EE

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

26. BORROWINGS (continued)

(b) Finance lease obligations

26. fE&#)

(b)

At 31st March 2013, the Group had obligations under
finance leases repayable as follows:

BMEHERE

R-E—=F=F=+—H K&
EIRERMEHEAEE ZREMDT

Group
rEH
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R-ZE—=% RZE——F N-T——%F
=A=+—8H =A=+—~H mA—A
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Finance lease liabilities RMEHEAE
minimum lease payments: ZmEEE :
— Within 1 year — 1F 4R — 6 23
— Between 1 and 2 years —1ZE2%F — — 6
— 6 29
Future finance charges on RMEREZ
finance leases KRR E & A — = (2)
Present value of finance BERERAEY
lease obligations RE — 6 27
The present value of finance BIEMHEALE
lease obligations is as WREWT :
follows:
— Within 1 year — 1FEUA — 6 21
— Between 1 and 2 years —1E2%F — — 6
— 6 27

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B X% R MY R

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. EZENREREMENKIE
Group Company
rEE LN
As at As at As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April 31st March 31st March
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012
“E-=& —E-CF —ZT——F —8-= —E-CF
SHEEH =R=+-AH MA—H =B=t-H =RA=+-H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEr TET TET TEr AT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&5 (B=75)
Trade and bills payables HARNFERENRE 88,311 139,747 142,493 - =
Accrual for operating expenses  JEsHE& R % 42,999 69,294 46,358 1,305 32,956
Receipts in advance BYEE 12,601 7,331 20,495 - =
Other payables Eft AR 9,352 12,771 12,754 - =
153,263 229,143 222,100 1,305 32,956

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on

BORNFARENZERBEERAHZ

invoice date, is as follows: R DTN T -
Group
rEE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R=B—=F RZZE——F WZZ——%
=A=+—8 =A=+—H mA—A
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FRT T FHETE
(Restated) (Restated)
(5eE:7)) (f&&E%)
90 days or less Q0 HE AT 81,058 132,653 137,335
91 to 180 days 91 HZE=180H 1,061 3,007 860
181 to 270 days 181 HZE270H 2,992 278 697
271 to 365 days 271HZE365H 779 — 11
Over 365 days B8 365 H 2,421 3,809 3,590
88,311 139,747 142,493
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5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables are

27. BESRENFREREMENSREZ)
B 5 RN RIE R ENEE 2 BEEEN T

denominated in the following currencies: BEREN
Group
AEE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2012 2011
- F —E
=A=+—~H mA—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(5&&E7) (s E3)
Hong Kong dollar BT 6,836 10,219 10,990
US dollar ETT 23,528 12,848 15,976
RMB AREE 728 534 508
Japanese Yen Ht 49,338 112,914 113,294
Others currencies H b 7,881 3,232 1,725
Total 4azE 88,311 139,747 142,493
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5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

28. PROVISIONS 28. #BfE
Group AEE
Reinstatement Onerous
costs contracts Total
ERER BEEH Fob
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT FET
(note 5.2)
(K17#5.2)
31st March 2012 —E——F#=fA=+—H
At 1st April 2011 R-ZZE—FWm™A—AH 3,366 — 3,366
Additional provision FHINEE 3,011 38,034 41,045
At 31st March 2012 RZZE——F=A=+—H 6,377 38,034 44,411
Less: Current portion JE - REER D (1,977) (15,287) (17,264)
Non-current portion at RZE——F=A=+—HZ
31st March 2012 (note 30) ERBEI D (HTaE30) 4,400 22,747 27,147
31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H
At 1st April 2012 R-—ZT——FWA—H 6,377 38,034 44,411
Amounts utilised during the year FARENAH 2 & 58 (1,041) (7,922) (8,963)
Reversal of unutilised amounts ¥ [@ K& A4 58 (536) (15,056) (15,592)
Increase in discounted amounts & B R 4 1 B A= 2
arising from the passage of AL 38 & ZEIE N
time (note 9) (K13 9) — 3,404 3,404
At 31st March 2013 R-ZT—=F=HA=+—H 4,800 18,460 23,260
Less: Current portion B mENE (1,200) (9,300) (10,500)
Non-current portion at R-_E—=F=HA=+—H
31st March 2013 (note 30) ZIEmENER D (M7 30) 3,600 9,160 12,760
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

29. DEFERRED TAX 29. EEFHIE
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences BREMBENIRAEERBEAREREZR
under the liability method using the applicable tax rates which BORERACERARENREREZE2 AT
are expected to apply at the time of reversal of the temporary Ho

differences.

The movements in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as RERBEE (AE)FE2ESHMOT -
follows:
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(gE5)
At beginning of year F7))
As previously reported BN 5 B FT £ R 11,485 26,544
Effects of early adoption of HKFRSs REFEMNE B BIRELER 2
(note 2.1) HEKE2.1) (9,949) (1,779)
As restated KET 1,536 24,765
Recognised in profit or loss RiBSER (1,990) (23,268)
Exchange realignment bE AR 37 39
At end of year FR (417) 1,536
Representing: Rk :
Deferred tax assets REFIBE B — 1,536
Deferred tax liabilities BEBIEAE (417) —
Total ek (417) 1,536
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5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. EEFIE (&)
The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities), without I EEF AR HERRBREEER AL
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the BT EERBEEE (AE)ZEFHN
same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: e
Changes in Provision
fair value of Accelerated of trade
biological tax receivables
assets depreciation and inventories Tax losses Total
EMEEZ g R EWHRE
ARELY MEREHE REERE BIEEE wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1st April 2011 RZE——F
mA—H
As previously reported A RIFT 2 8 (545) (1,467) 3,837 24,719 26,544
Effects of early adoption RERMED
of HKFRSs (note 2.1) Eip eyl
FEWiz21) 545 - (849) (1,475) (1,779)
As restated mE7| = (1,467) 2,988 23,244 24,765
Recognised in profit or loss ~ AIEZHER = 1,041 (1,065) (23,244) (23,268)
Exchange realignment fE X % — — 39 — 39
At 31st March 2012 i 3
EF=E+=F — (426) 1,962 = 1,536
At st April 2012 RZE—=F
MA—H
As previously reported WA HIFT 2 (676) (426) 9,251 3,336 11,485
Effects of early adoption REFMES
of HKFRSs (note 2.1) BIREE
TEMiE21) 676 - (7,289) (3,336) (9,949)
As restated ) - (426) 1,962 - 1,536
Recognised in profit or loss R IEZHER - (259) (1,731) - (1,990)
Exchange realignment B A% - - 37 - 37
At 31st March 2013 RZZE—=F=H
=1+—H - (685) 268 — (417)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31st March 2013, the Group had unrecognised
deferred tax assets of HK$51,096,000 (31st March 2012:
HK$45,930,000 (restated); 1st April 2011: HK$13,317,000
(restated)), primarily representing the tax effect of cumulative
tax losses (subject to agreement by relevant tax authorities)
which can be carried forward indefinitely. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be

utilised.

Pursuant to the Mainland China enterprise income tax law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1st January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31st December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of

earnings generated from 1st January 2008.

As at 31st March 2013, 31st March 2012 and 1st April 2011,
there were no significant unrecognised deferred tax liabilities
for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China because, in
the opinion of the directors, it was not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute those earnings in the foreseeable

future.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED dtz5 SRER 1= ARG R A E]

29.

o

SH

EERE &)

RZE—=F=A=+—H AEEZX
TERRIEE T TH & E 47 51,096,000 L (= F
——fF=HA=+—H : 45,930,000 T (#&
#%)): —FT——FMWA—H 13,317,000
B(EEN)) - EZRBRFHIEEIE
(ARBEENBHERE) 2RBXE %
SREAAERALE - ARZEEERE
E—RERESEREZMEBAR - BAX
A AL A IR Bm A A A ST IE 18 - i)
WESZSERERECHIEERE

RIE R E A FE AT RE - R E A
R BINEREREIMNTEBET IR ZRE
BEMI0% BN - ZBEREH_ZT
NE—A—ARERVBERR-_TSLF
TZA=T—RAZBREEZAEF - P H
A i B SNS A 2 FTBR B A M I R A IR
%€ - AP BE A BIR 2 BRI E o Bt
AEBEME  ERABER/S%H10% - B
It - AL E AR ERA P E A 2 R
NRAGAZEENF—A—BREAZA
R 2 2 AR S AR TENFL

RZZE—=F=A=+—H8 ZF—=
ZA=+—RBAkZZE—FMA—A ' &
S ERF E AH2 iB A B2 AR IE & F)
ERZHE WESEARERELEHIER
& RAREZRRUEWEAGERTE
BRI PRAED IRZFRTF



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B X% R MY R

31st March 2013 = —=F=A=+—H

30. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

30. HEftiFRBAEE

Group
NEE
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2013 2012
R=®B—= RZT—Z—F
=A=+-H =A=+—~
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HaE FHET FET
Employee benefits EE®F 628 531
Provision for reinstatement costs EREBREE 28 3,600 4,400
Provision for onerous contracts E1EA LB E 28 9,160 22,747
13,388 27,678
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5 75 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

31.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1t35 SREZIZIRE R A A

CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

31.

Reconciliation of loss before income tax to net cash flows from

CEMEAZRE

BAEHABREKEXEMEEC RS

MEFRE B

operating activities:
2013 2012
—E—=F —F—
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(5=E%)
Loss before income tax bR 1S BL A 518 (29,380) (217,256)
Adjustment for: P
Finance income BRI (3,718) (8,528)
Finance costs W58 A 5,392 1,137
Share of profits and losses of joint JE(hE &R REE
ventures (2,052) 31,238
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREETE
equipment 4,519 19,560
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEYE BELEEZ
plant and equipment B8, (kes) (1,131) 835
Provision for impairment of property, YIE - BE RS ERERE
plant and equipment — 40,580
Write-off of property, plant and M - BB KRR
equipment 269 —
Amortisation of intangible assets A EH — 437
Provision for impairment of intangible | EERERE
assets — 2,112
Write-off of intangible assets B EEMH — 1,028
Provision for impairment of trade and E 5 FE WK IE K H A UL
other receivables, net RIEBREREFE — 4,401
Impairment of investments in joint REEREZIRERE
ventures 45,273 ==
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HENHEEEREEZ
financial assets g — (1,183)
19,172 (125,609)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFEZRL/(Em) (668) 2,399
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B 5 B UL ZRIE K EH At fE UK
receivables FIEZRA (3 0) 67,423 (24,203)
Decrease in other rental and other HtHe REMIZS 2B
deposits — 77
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other & 5 T I8 & E b fE A
payables B8N, CRd) (75,686) 10,481
Increase in severance and retirement BB KR IREF 20
benefits 97 17
Decrease in an amount due from a A & ERIA
joint venture 305 170
Increase/(decrease) in provisions Bz Em CRd) (24,555) 41,045
Net cash flows used in operations EEMERA A REFHE (13,912) (95,623)
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5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

32.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

For the years ended 31st March 2013 and 2012, the Company
provided a guarantee of all obligations payable to BK
Asiapac Pte. Ltd. (“BKAP”) with respect to its branded food
operation. As at 31st March 2013, the Group’s outstanding
balance payable to BKAP amounted to HK$450,000 (2012:
HK$449,000).

As at 31st March 2013, the Company had provided
guarantees of HK$508,826,000 (31st March 2012:
HK$508,868,000 (restated); 1st April 2011: HK$425,660,000
(restated)) with respect to banking facilities made available
to its subsidiaries. As at 31st March 2013, the banking
facilities granted to its subsidiaries subject to guarantees
given to banks by the Company were utilised to the extent of
HK$78,654,000 (2012: HK$194,378,000 (restated); 1st April
2011: HK$145,632,000 (restated)). The Company’s directors
and the Group’s management anticipate that no material
liabilities will arise from such guarantees which arose in the

ordinary course of business.

As at 31st March 2013, the Company had provided guarantee
of HK$121,840,000 (2012: HK$257,520,000 (restated);
1st April 2011: HK$61,040,000 (restated)) with respect to
banking facilities made available to its joint ventures. As
at 31st March 2013, the banking facilities granted to its
joint ventures subject to guarantees given to banks by the
Company were utilised to the extent of HK$51,759,000
(31st March 2012: HK$227,875,000 (restated); 1st April 2011:
HK$21,909,000 (restated)). The Company’s directors and the
Group’s management anticipate that no material liabilities will
arise from such guarantees which arose in the ordinary course

of business.

32.

MBER

HE_Z-—=Fr_ZT——F=A=1+—
H  ZR2RAEHERERMEEMRBK
Asiapac Pte. Ltd. ([BKAP)RRHEZ2EE
THER R_E—=F=ZA=+—H ' K
& [ JE 1 BKAP 2 K 8 i2 45 #2 /3 450,000
WBIL(ZF — 4% : 449,000/7T) °

MR-ZB—=F=A=+—R0 ARQFEH
HMB AR ERHE ZRITREIRMBER
508,826,000 BT (ZE——F=A=+—
H : 508,868,000 (& &% ): =&
——4 P A—H : 425,660,000/8 T (&L E
) R=ZTE—Z=F=ZA=+—R0 EF
HITB AR ZRITRE (EAA R MIRITIR
HIER)P - BEFH 78,654,000 (=F
— =4 : 194,378,000 T (&KL E7|) : =
T——FMA—H : 145,632,000 7% 7T (&
BH)) c RARIZEERAEEM 2 BEE
BT EEZEROREABEKABRE)M
EXERARE-

RZE—=%F=ZA=+—H' ARQFE
HEEGELERREHZBITRERM
& 18 121,840,000 (= T — = & :
257,520,000 & T (L& E5)) s =T ——4F
/M A—H : 61,040,000 TT(KEF)) »
R-ZT—=F=ZA=+—0 BTHA%L
EZEITHEBARARMBRITRMEE
R)h - BB 51,759,000 (T —=
F=ZF=1+—H8 :227,875,000/8 T(&KLE
F)): —F——4FMHA—H : 21,909,000
BILEEN)) c ARARZEFRAEE
ZERERHRTEEZER(REBFEED
BR)MELERERE -

I
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31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

33. BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31st March 2013, the Group had banking facilities
of HK$501,839,000 (31st March 2012: HK$497,999,000
(restated); 1st April 2011: HK$410,314,000 (restated)) from
several banks for loans and trade financing. As at 31st March
2013, banking facilities of HK$78,654,000 were utilised by
the Group (31st March 2012: HK$194,378,000 (restated); 1st
April 2011: HK$144,603,000 (restated)). These facilities were
secured by:

33.

RITEE

R-E—=F=A=+—R0  A&EKkAH
ETRITZERARESMEZRITRHE R
501,839,000 T (—E——F=F=+—
H : 497,999,000/ (& &E 45| ): =&
—— % A —H : 410,314,000 Jr (&
BY))) RZZE—=F=F=+—H8 ' %
LRVE B EANEEE A 78,654,000 T
—T——F=A=+—H : 194,378,000
B EY ) —ET——FWmA—H:
144,603,000/ 8 T(A&EF)) - ZFFE A
T 577 KA

i

Group
rEE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R=ZB—=F R-T——F R-T——%F
=A=+-—H =H=+—8H MA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(% 5E51) (F£&E5)
Time deposits TEHATF K — — 293
Discounted bills receivables BLIR IR IR — 137 —
In addition to the above, these facilities were secured by: B EiiEI  ZERE LT KX EK
1

(i) a corporate guarantee of HK$508,826,000 (31st March
2012: HK$508,868,000 (restated); 1st April 2011:
HK$425,660,000 (restated)) provided by the Company;
and

(i) a government guarantee of HK$19,200,000
(81st March 2012: HK$19,200,000 (restated); 1st April
2011: HK$19,200,000 (restated)) provided by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative

Region.
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(i) ARaERHEZAEHERS508,826,000
BT ZE—Z—ZF=A=+—8:
508,868,000 (KL &E%H ) : = F
——® A—A : 425,660,000 7T
(&=7))) : &

(i) BAFAFNTHERERFREH
19,200,000 T (ZFE—=—F = A
= + — H :19,200,000/8 JT(#&
g3) ZE——F@®A—A:
19,200,000 & 7T (K& &) ) 2 BUT &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 B &

31st March 2013 ==

34.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34, REMHEZRH

As lessee ERABEA

The Group leases certain of its office properties, warehouses AEERBEZHELEHELHESEERT
and shops under operating lease arrangements. The leases WAEYE  BERIEH - ZEMEZE
for these properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to EHANFIFEIFAE o

3 years.

At 31st March 2013, the Group had total future minimum lease R-ZZE—Z=F=A=+—8 ' A&£ERE

payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due

as follows:

—=%#=A=+—H

%8
&

TAHEELEHEE - RARREAEZ
EHESEEN TSI MBI

Group
AEH
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R=®B—= R-B——F MRZT——%F
=A=t+—H EF=F—F MA—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(g =51) (FE51)
Within one year 1FELAR 30,777 31,200 29,288
In the second to fifth years, F2FRESF
inclusive (REEERMF) 24,013 38,728 20,247
54,790 69,928 49,535
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31st March 2013 ZZ—=F=A=+—H

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued) 34.

In respect of the above non-cancellable operating lease

commitments, the following provision for onerous contracts

has been recognised:

g

HEZB @)

R ERTATHEEEHENS - SR D
SIEHER A KRR -

Group
AN EEE
As at As at As at
31st March 31st March 1st April
2013 2012 2011
R=ZB—=F R-T——F R-T——F
—A=1+—8 mA—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT FAET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (EE7)
Onerous lease contracts (note 28) B84 &) (H1:£28)
Within one year —F AR 9,300 15,287 —
In the second to fifth years, F2FERELF(BEY
inclusive B mF) 9,160 22,747 —
18,460 38,034 —
35. COMMITMENTS 35. &

As at 31st March 2013, neither the Group nor the Company
had any significant capital commitments or contingent

liabilities.

As at 31st March 2013, the Group’s share of the joint ventures’

own capital commitments is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment:
Contracted but not provided for

M - R Rk

ERTAVEAREAE

31st March

2013

HK$°000
FET

12,457

RZZE-—Z=F=ZA=+—8 XEEIX
AAMEEMEREARAEBERLAREE -

—T—=F=-fF=+—8  AEBREG
BEDERE 7 ENEENT

As at

31st March
2012
R=T——%F
EH=EF—F
HK$'000
T

11,254
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31st March 2013 —E—=F=A=+—H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36.

Apart from those related party transactions as disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the

following significant related party transactions:

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties during the year:

BEREEATZRS

BRUBHRREMBAOBREZZSEEA
IR AEEE TN ERMEALR

5

(a)

Bt EM MR LA Dl 232
29 AEERFRNEAFEALE
TIRS

Group
rEH
For the year ended 31st March
BE=ZA=1+—-BHLFE

2012
—E——F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat FET F&T
A joint venture: aEPE
Guarantee fee income ERERIA (i) 759 800
(i) The guarantee fee income arose from the guarantee (i) ARARIMEAECEREZRITHE
provided by the Company with respect to banking EHERMB BB EREEZ05%
facilities made available to its joint ventures, which in ZHERER AMELEZERERAK
return received a guarantee fee based on 0.5% of the A e
guaranteed amounts.
(b) Balances with subsidiaries (b) EEMEATZ#s%
The current portions of balances with subsidiaries are HB AR ZEHR 2 RBB D RE
unsecured, interest-free and repayable/payable within a BH - 2B RFEE—FRE tﬁ\/%l
year. fF o
The non-current portions of balances with subsidiaries BB AR ZEBRZIERBI S
are unsecured, interest-free and non-repayable within RERKR RS BHAE —F W
one year, except for an amount due from a subsidiary BE  HEKKEB QR 2RI
of HK$40,601,000 (2012: HK$23,711,000) that bears 40,601,000 (= & — = i :
interest at a fixed rate of 10% (2012: fixed rate of 10%) 23,711,000 7% 7t ) 78 #% [& & 7| & 10
per annum. E(ZZ—=—F: AEMEI0E)X
RS o
(c) Balances with a joint venture (c) HEgELEIHEH

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured,

interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

RUREELERAREER 28
BEBEEERD -
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. HEEALTZRSZ (&)
(d) Key management compensation of the Group (d TEEBXTEEBEASMS
For the year ended 31st March
BE=ZA=1+—HLFE
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(1&=51)
Salaries and allowances e MOERL 5,056 6,449
Retirement benefits — defined RIRFEF
contribution scheme — REH-NKETE 30 36
Termination benefits BEEL 1R A 1,500 =
6,586 6,485
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EEMWe 2 E—PHEBINT KR
note 8 to the financial statements. FMTEES o
During the year ended 31st March 2013 and 31st March 2012, Hz—_2—=F=-A=t+—HBk=_Z—=
the Company did not have any connected transactions or F=A=1T—HLEFEARN ~NQAIBEE
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of IBIER EHARBIE20FBMREZBER
the GEM Listing Rules. SNIFERER S o
37. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 37. TRIEECHEE
Financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety AEEMBARLBERACERMEE

As part of its normal course of business, the Group discounted
certain bills receivable in respect of sale transactions with
third party customers to banks on a recourse basis for cash.
In the opinion of the directors, as the Group is exposed to
default risks of the trade debtors after the transfer, the Group
continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of these
discounted bills receivable in the “trade and bills receivables”
and the related bank advances from the discounting in the
“bank and other borrowings” of the consolidated statement
of financial position. Subsequent to the transfer, the Group
does not retain any rights on the use of the bills receivable,
including sale, transfer or pledge of the bills receivable to
any other third parties. As at 31st March 2013, there were no
discounted bills receivables (2012: HK$137,000) (note 33)
nor bank advances related to the discounted bills receivables
(2012: HK$137,000).

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b3 SREEIZRBRAF

EAHEREBBRE, —5H5  A&EEH
HEE=-FRPZHEXRSHMIRITHMIRE
TFRKEE(MAEBRE) ARDIRE - &
ERR BREREAEEZ FREKEXR
HEHEARR - Bt - REBEENGT
AR KRB 5 FENRIE K& =
RERZ SR ENER 2HREER
RIRITREAMEE | HERAIR 28
RITR - WEE - AEE W EREEH
EREE  ERAEMNELE=FEE -
BELEHEREE 2 AREN - R=F
—=F=A=+—8 " BECHIEER
ZE(ZF — =4 : 137,000/ 7v ) (M} 7
33) sk E1RL IR FE W IR AR B 2 A TR T EA
R(=ZZ——4% : 137,000/ 7T) °
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37.

38.

39.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

During the year, the Group has not recognised any gain
or loss on the date of transfer of these discounted bills
receivable (2012: Nil).

from the continuing involvement,

No gains or losses were recognised
both during the year or

cumulatively.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Other than available-for-sale financial assets and derivative
financial instruments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as disclosed in note 18 and note 21 to
the financial statements, respectively, all financial assets and
liabilities of the Group and the Company as at 31st March
2013, 31st March 2012 and 1st April 2011 were loans and
receivables, and financial liabilities stated at amortised cost,
respectively.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 3rd April 2013, the Company entered into a conditional
subscription agreement with an independent subscriber
pursuant to which the subscriber conditionally agreed to
subscribe and the Company conditionally agreed to allot
and issue 1,400,000,000 convertible preference shares (with
warrants) at HK$0.228 per convertible preference share for
an aggregate subscription price of HK$319.2 million payable
at completion of the subscription. Details of the subscription
can be found in the Company’s announcement dated 5th April
2013. Subsequently on 10th May 2013, the Company and
the subscriber entered into a letter of termination pursuant to
which the Company and the subscriber agreed to terminate
the subscription agreement by mutual consent. Details of the
termination of the subscription can be found in the Company’s
announcement dated 13th May 2013.

On 3rd May 2013, the Company has received an offer from an
offeror for possible acquisition of the Company’s total equity
interest in its 40% joint venture. Negotiation of the terms and
conditions including, inter alia, the consideration of the offeror
is ongoing and no binding agreement has been entered as at
the date of these financial statements. Details of the possible
disposal can be found in the Company’s announcement dated
7th May 2013.

37.

38.

39.

THEE2ERWA)

FR - AKE] \Eiérﬁﬂfﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁlmﬁzfﬁ}'“
BT REREFARARBER(ZFE—=
FE) - ﬂrﬂllﬁlﬁﬁéméﬁé!ﬁé‘ﬁﬁqﬁt%ﬁ@

FE2EER -

RERNESPZ2ERIA
% 5 B3 B 75 3R 3% T 3 18 RT3 21 AT IR

BOBERRAREBIRYNEBEREEZS
REEZAHLESREERITESRT
BN AREERARARANR_-F—=F=A
—+—RA -—E——F-A=-+—AK—=
E——FNA-BZMEEREEREE
2 R A E RN MR IR B AR S AR ) R
ZERMAE-

FRERR TR

MZZE—=FMA=0 " ARFE—ZF
SMREBAFIBIGGRERE - Bt R
BAB KGR ERE kA A R A R4
A = Fid 3 K %% 17 1,400,000,000 f% AT #2 f%
BERCGERRERE) - ERATRATERR
B Rk0.2288 7L BREE R3.19218
BT ARRBESHEEKRINN - RES
BZHEI2EARRAPAE-T—=F
WMARAZAE - HERZ=Z—=FFA

TH - ARFHEBEAGT KRG &
bt AR RRBREALEFTREKIERER
o RIERBEEZFBEU2MARARA
A= ’:*:Eﬁﬂ +=B2R%E -

RZE—=FRA=H ARAEE—F
ZOANREATREBERRTRNE40% 6=
EZEHRAER 2 EL - BE(EFRE
B)EHAZREBR MGG EEITHE -
AL ZE I Bk B BN R ET L AR T
Wk o AR EFE 2 FBAI2MAAA
REA—T—=FRAtRAZA%
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40. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.1 to the financial statements,
due to the early adoption of new and revised HKFRSs during
the current year, the accounting treatment and presentation
of certain items and balances in the financial statements have
been revised to comply with new requirements. Accordingly,
certain prior year adjustments have been made, certain
amounts have been reclassified and restated to conform with
the current year’s presentation and accounting treatment, and
a third statement of financial position as at 1st April 2011 has
been presented.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1t35 SREZIZIRE R A A

al

40.

BT

HIN WA T2 AE— S RE - |
RAFREREFRANT REETEBNB
WEER  MPBHRR2ETRE REH
ZEAREFZINTACKEBITRTAH
ME - At EFH ELFERE - XEH
DRREINETHER  NEAFEZ 25
REstRETA—B ME=ZOHR_F
——FNA-AZHBRRARTERY -
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